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Strategic Report (incorporating the Operating and Financial Review) 

This report provides an assessment of Ocean Housing Group Limited for the year 2015/16. It is comprised of three 

sections: 

1. Overview of the Business 

- Group structure overview 

- Our vision 

2. Assessment of Value for Money and financial performance 

- Our approach and strategy 

- Providing quality services at the right price 

- Maximising returns 

- Supporting communities and protecting the environment 

- Continuous improvement 

- Conclusion 

3. Risk management 

- Our Approach 

- Strategic Risk map 
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1. OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS 

 
Ocean Housing Group Limited is a registered provider and a company limited by guarantee.  It was formed in 
December 2003 to enable the creation of the Ocean Group of companies.  As at 31 March 2016, the Group consists of 
the following companies: 
 

Ocean Housing Group Limited – A non-asset owning registered provider and non-charitable company limited by 

guarantee, providing quality, efficient and effective corporate and strategic services to the Group’s subsidiaries. 

 

Ocean Housing Limited – a Registered Society under The Co-operative and Community Benefit Society Act 2014 and 

Registered Provider of social housing with the Homes and Communities Agency, providing quality, efficient, effective and 

caring services to its tenants, together with the maintenance of its houses and estates in order to provide an environment 

for its residents to enjoy a safe, secure and high quality of life. The company was originally formed in 1998 and 

commenced operation in February 2000 when it purchased the whole housing stock of 3,502 homes from Restormel 

Borough Council. 

 

Gilbert & Goode Limited – A company limited by shares, providing good quality and competitive building contracts for a 

range of customers, including new build affordable homes for Ocean Housing Limited. The company also build new 

homes for open market sale. 

 

Ocean Services (SW) Limited – On 31 August 2015 the main trade of Ocean Services (SW) Limited was transferred to 

Ocean Housing Limited, effectively bringing in-house the maintenance work for that company.  Ocean Services (SW) 

Limited ceased to trade on 10 November 2015. 

 

The Group’s housing stock is located within the county of Cornwall. At the 31 March 2016, the Group owned 4,296 

(2015: 4,204) affordable homes.  A further analysis of the Group’s assets is as follows: 

 

 

Ocean Housing Affordable Housing Stock 2016 2015 2014 

General needs 2,959 2,992 3,000 

Sheltered / supported housing 765 769 774 

Affordable rented 160 111 96 

Other rented 81 45 12 

Sub Total 3,965 3,917 3,882 

Shared ownership 331 287 263 

    

Total 4,296 4,204 4,145 

    

Leasehold properties 129 127 127 

Garages and car spaces 575 575 577 

Shops and offices  6  6 6 
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Our Vision 
 

The Group’s mission statement is;  

 

“To be an innovative provider of quality homes and services with residents and staff at the heart of Ocean, and 

Ocean at the heart of the community.” 

 

The Group’s vision is laid out in its Corporate Strategy, the resources for such being incorporated into a 40 year 

Business Plan; this is reviewed, updated and approved by the Board on an annual basis.  The objectives are then 

translated into annual company plans, which outline and set targets for operational delivery of Corporate Strategy 

objectives for the year ahead in the context of continuous improvement and efficiency. 

 

Statement of Compliance 
 

The Board of Management confirms that the Operating and Financial Review (incorporated within this Strategic Report) 

has been prepared in accordance with the principles as set out in the 2014 SORP for Registered Social Housing 

Providers and Regulatory Standards issued by the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) for social housing providers 

in April 2012. 

 

For the first time registered providers are required this year to certify their compliance with the Governance and Financial 

Viability Standard by their regulator, the Homes and Communities Agency. Ocean Housing Group and its regulated 

subsidiary, Ocean Housing Limited confirm that they comply in all respects with the standard.  This statement is made 

following careful consideration and assessment by the Board. 
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2. VALUE FOR MONEY (VFM) 

Our approach 

Overview 

 

Providing Value for Money is more than providing quality services at a low cost, although this is of course very important. 

We are a significant business in Cornwall and we want to maximise the impact of our work and investments so that our 

customers, the communities we serve, and the environment, benefit from what we do. 

 

The work we undertake is complex, with a range of objectives, so there will always be dilemmas and compromises.  

Whichever decisions we make there will be opportunity costs, but we have always had clear objectives that are 

scrutinised and regularly reviewed. This is supported by a comprehensive framework in place to ensure that the boards, 

staff and residents have the information they need to make informed decisions and gain assurance that we are delivering 

the best possible outcomes. Customer feedback and challenge play an important and increasing role in the monitoring of 

our services with the Tenants and Residents Panel, Tenant Monitors and the Scrutiny Panel providing useful insights 

alongside more traditional feedback in the form of surveys, complaints and compliments. 

 

Headline Social Housing Cost per unit 

 

The HCA published their assessment of the sector’s approach to VFM in June 2016, ‘Delivering Better Value for Money’.  

This publication can be found at www.gov.uk/government/publications. Within the report, the HCA have developed a 

measure called ‘Headline Social Housing Cost’ per unit.  This effectively looks at all costs incurred by housing 

associations and divides them by the number of units managed in order to form a basis for comparison. 

The mean average headline social housing cost per unit across the sector in 2014/15 (the latest period with comparative 

detail available) was £3,950 per unit.  Ocean’s cost per unit in the same period was £2,550 per unit, 35% lower than the 

sector average.  Ocean’s cost base is lower in all areas analysed separately in the HCA’s analysis as set out below. 

 

 Sector mean 

cost per unit 

Sector median 

cost per unit 

Ocean cost  

per unit 
Management & service charge costs £1,540 £1,360 £1,050 

Maintenance costs £1,010 £980 £830 

Major repairs costs £930 £800 £670 

Other social housing costs £470 £200 - 

Headline social housing costs £3,950 £3,550 £2,550 

 

Ocean has always had a focus on operating efficiently since its inception in 2000.  Rent restructuring in 2002 resulted in 

Cornwall having some of the lowest social housing rents anywhere in the country.  The impact on Ocean was significant 

at the time with £60 million of income being taken out of the business’ long term cash flow forecasts.  This came just two 

years after the transfer which was a time when investment in the stock was high to bring it up to Decent Homes standard.  

Operating costs were stripped back to deliver the improvements within the constraints of the income limitation.   

 

Ocean only has a very small proportion (0.4%) of Supported Housing which is more expensive to manage and so its 

overall cost based is not impacted by these costs.  However, 18% of the stock is designated as Housing for Older 

Persons which does typically carry above average costs of management. 

 

16 years on from the stock transfer, the costs of stock improvements have reduced greatly.  However operating cost 

efficiency has remained important as Ocean focuses on its key objective of investing in the delivery of new homes and 

service quality.  This focus on efficiency has contributed to the fact that Ocean’s costs per unit are well below the sector 

average. 

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications
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Regulation 

It is a regulatory requirement that we publish this Value for Money self-assessment. The Regulator has a VFM Standard 

which requires that a robust annual self-assessment to be prepared to allow our stakeholders to clearly see what we are 

doing and whether we are delivering our objectives in a transparent manner and providing Value for Money.    

The regulator expects housing association Boards to have; 

 A robust approach to making decisions 

 A clear understanding of the return on their assets 

 Have strong performance management and scrutiny practices 

 Full understanding of the costs of the services they provide 

In producing its annual self-assessment statement the Board need to provide assurance that; 

 Stakeholders can fully understand how assets are being used to achieve Group objectives 

The report, in the section on ‘Maximising Returns’, demonstrates how existing assets are reviewed and if 

necessary sold.  The section illustrates how much sales, along with Ocean’s activity and use of security is 

maximised to support the building of a number of new homes for local people in need and supporting the local 

economy. 

 Stakeholders can see the absolute costs of services and how they compare with others 

The report, in the section on ‘Providing Quality Services’, gives clear information on cost and performance for 

Ocean in 2015/16 and specifically compares this to a respected benchmarking service.  The report draws out 

areas for improvement, as well as successes, in a balanced way. 

 Stakeholders can see VFM gains achieved and get comfort that more will be realised in the future  

The report clearly illustrates Ocean’s commitment to achieve VFM gains in the section on ‘Continuous 

Improvement’.  In this section of the report the reader can see the major VFM gains in the year and crucially, 

gets assurance that strategic plans are in place to continue the delivery of efficiency gains into 2016/17 and 

beyond. 

The Board of Ocean believes that its commitment to VFM is strong, embedded in its culture and robust. It is 

committed to providing quality services to its residents, is transparent and encourages and listens to challenge. 

It believes the Regulatory Standard is met and that this is adequately demonstrated within this self-assessment 

and through the Ocean website. 

For more information, please visit our website at www.oceanhousing.com. 
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Value for Money Strategy 
 

Ocean’s VFM strategy is incorporated within the Group’s Corporate Strategy, thereby embedding the VFM culture at the 

heart of our objectives.  The influential Scrutiny Panel hold the responsibility of VFM challenge from a tenant perspective 

and the Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee play a crucial role in managing the Strategy and monitoring 

progress against objectives.  Such a structure ensures that VFM and Ocean’s customers are at the heart of the 

Corporate Strategy. 

 

The current VFM Strategy, which is reviewed by the Board each July, includes a range of projects to be completed each 

year in addition to determining the VFM culture framework. Such projects seek to establish continuous improvement in 

services. This is further embedded through strong staff awareness of VFM via staff briefings, inclusion of a compulsory 

VFM section within the standard board report format and full inclusion of staff in the project reviews. Over the course of 

2015/16, VFM has been at the core of a number of Board discussions.  The Board have formulated a strategic VFM plan 

known as the Financial Improvement Plan which will see the social housing operations improve operating margin by 

£4.0 million by 2018 when compared to the 2013/14 business plan.  As shown earlier, Ocean already ranks very well in 

the sector when comparing the HCA’s ‘headline social housing cost per unit’ with total cost per unit well below the sector 

average, however the Board have embraced the continuous improvement mentality and are looking to streamline 

operations further. 

 

In 2015, Group Board established an Economic Forecasting Panel that meets every other month.  The Panel is made up 

of a selection of board members and it monitors the economic environment in which we operate and matches economic 

indicators to the Group’s performance.  The information gathered and discussions held at these panel meetings is used 

to enhance forward strategic planning across all group companies, share knowledge and information across different 

boards and committees to improve decision making, reduce risk and support the protection of Ocean’s social housing 

assets 

 

Ocean has an annually reviewed Corporate Strategy that drives the business, setting out a vision and a range of 

objectives to deliver this. The Strategy is underpinned with what Ocean refers to as its Five Golden Threads. These 

threads are the basis of Ocean’s delivery plans, which all staff work towards. Annually, each company in the Group 

agrees a Company Plan which sets out how it will deliver the Corporate vision, and each task needs to evidence how it 

will meet the Golden Threads. In turn, these Company Plans feed down to annual individual team and staff targets. The 

Five Golden Threads are stated throughout each section of this VFM self-assessment, to ensure that at all times focus 

remains on these strategic aims. The annual budget and business planning exercise is undertaken in line with this 

corporate planning and allows resources to be deployed by Board so as to effectively meet these objectives and within 

the capacity available. 

 

In having such strong objectives, the Group can ensure that, at all times, decisions are made in a manner that supports 

the Corporate Strategy. All Board reports have a structured format that ensures members consider all key matters in a 

robust and informed manner, consistently being aware of the corporate objectives when making decisions. The 

overarching objective that is the umbrella to the Five Golden Threads is that Ocean will have tenants at the heart of 

everything we do. At all times Ocean will work to deliver quality services to tenants in a VFM manner and ensure that 

non-social housing activity contributes at all times positively to tenant services and not put any social assets at risk. 

 

In assessing whether we provide VFM, we look at how effectively we have delivered in the following four themes as 

contained in the Regulator’s guidance. These themes are listed below and we address them by linking them to our Five 

Golden Threads: 

 

 Providing quality services at the right price 

 Maximising returns 

 Supporting communities and protecting the environment 

 Continuous Improvement 
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Benchmarking 
 

Where benchmarking has been included within this self-assessment, this has been against a group of 25 Large Scale 

Voluntary Transfer Housing Associations based in the South of England.  The list of associations included within this 

comparator group is attached as Annex 1 to this Value for Money section.  We have used a slightly different comparator 

group in this year’s benchmarking section.  We have expanded the group to include more associations in order to give us 

better comparison to draw upon.  This change does not materially alter our benchmarked performance against others.  

We will look to keep this data set consistent year on year for the future reports. 
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Providing quality services at the right price 

This theme looks at our approach to monitoring performance and how we’ve performed in the year. It directly links 
to one of our corporate objectives: 
 

 Provide good quality services, right first time 
 

 

Group Restructure in 2015 
 

As reported last year, Ocean’s Group Board made the decision in 2015 to restructure the Group in order to bring 

maintenance operations in-house to Ocean Housing Limited.  The restructure was completed on 31 August 2015.  

Ocean Housing has benefited from the restructure as it now has greater direct control over its maintenance 

operations.  Following the completion of the restructure, a detailed review of all repairs and maintenance activity is 

now underway which will be complete by the end of the 2016 calendar year.  This review will ensure that the right 

services are being provided in the right areas and that the quality delivered to tenants improves further from its 

already high standard.  As well as improving control and quality, a further benefit of the restructure is the reduction 

in the cost base.  Costs were reduced by £313,000 in 2015/16 directly as a result of the restructure.  The full year 

benefit in 2016/17 is expected to be £650,000. 

 

Budgeting  
 

Each year operational budgets are drawn up within the constraints of the long term business plan.  By setting 

budgets within the business plan parameters, we can be sure we are planning consistently to protect the financial 

viability of the Group.  During 2015/16, the budgets for 2016/17 were approved by Board.  Each budget line was 

critically evaluated to ensure Value for Money was embedded in the underlying plans of the business.  No budget 

lines were automatically rolled on to the following year.  The Group went through a bottom up budgeting process 

to scrutinise all expenditure. The result was that non-contractual budget lines were reduced by 20% year on year.  

Only where budget lines included contractual obligations, were they uplifted.  The uplift in wages and salaries, the 

most significant element of our management cost base, across the Group in 2015/16 was restricted to 1.75%. The 

pay award to staff in 2016/17 reduced to 1.3%. 

 

Base budgets are critically challenged by the senior management team, the Executive Group, before going to 

Board for approval.  Base budgets include the resources required to deliver a consistent service level, year on 

year.  Where resource is proposed for new or enhanced service provision, specific Executive Group and Board 

approval is required in order that the Value for Money of the new or enhanced service is separately evaluated. All 

Board reports are written in a standard format that requires the author to specifically refer to VFM implications of 

the recommendations in addition to the need to document the risk and financial implications of the proposals. 

 

How we monitor performance in Ocean Housing 
 

Quarterly reports to Board and Executive Group outline our performance across the following areas: 
 

 Human Resources 

 Finance 

 Neighbourhood and Community  

 Development 

 Tenant Involvement and Empowerment 

 Home 

 Tenancy 
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A comprehensive commentary is provided explaining performance trends and deviations from targets. A quarterly 

performance report is also published on our website and presented for scrutiny and comment to our Tenants and 

Residents Panel.  

 

Each year a meeting is held where Board members and involved residents come together to challenge the service 

standards offered by Ocean and our performance in the year. These meetings feed into our planning process and 

have helped to enhance our performance culture and establish effective working relationship between Board 

members and resident panellists. They also increase our overall accountability and add transparency to the 

planning process. 

 

Target setting is completed annually by the Board prior to the budgeting process, taking account of performance 

monitoring and benchmarking information and feedback from our involved residents. Targets set are realistic but 

challenging.  We take every opportunity to drive down costs, whilst maintaining the service standards we have 

agreed with residents. We always look to set targets that stimulate continuous improvement across the whole 

Group. 

 

Our service performance to residents in 2015/16 
 

Set out below is an extract of 14 key performance measures showing trends and comparisons to benchmark 

information where it is available. 

 

Performance indicator Actual Actual Target Actual Benchmark Quartiles 14/15 Target 

 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2015/16 Upper Medium Lower 2016/17 

Current tenant arrears 1.75% 1.88% 1.90% 2.05% 2.01% 2.57% 3.24% 3.00% 

Rent written off 0.54% 1.02% 0.60% 0.72% 0.15% 0.31% 0.80% 1.25% 

Average re-let times  23 days 19 days 19 days 25 days 19 days 22 days 28 days 19 days 

Rent loss through voids 0.93% 0.56% 0.65% 0.78% 0.56% 0.75% 1.28% 0.65% 

Repairs completed on time 98.4% 98.5% 99.0% 93.9% N/A N/A N/A 98.5% 

Satisfaction with repairs 

 

97.4% 98.4% 98.7% 94.3% 96.5% 93.5% 91.2% 96.5% 

Decent Homes failures 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0.1% 0% 

 

 

Average SAP of dwellings 63 69 69 69 N/A N/A N/A 69 

Time to sell Homebuy 31 wks 30 wks 26 wks 16 wks N/A N/A N/A 26 wks 

New homes delivered 41 72 111 116 N/A N/A N/A 84 

Management and services 

cost per unit 

 int 

£1,071 £1,060 £1,152 £1,096 £930 £1,310 £1,880 £1,157 

Maintenance cost per unit £910 £980 £794 £670 £810 £980 £1,180 £624 

Major repairs cost per unit £551 £660 £581 £471 £530 £810 £1,130 £474 

Other social housing costs £0 £0 £0 £0 £80 £200 £410 £0 

 

Two measures (overall tenant satisfaction of 88% and tenant satisfaction with participation in decision marking of 

72%) are no longer set out above as these results are based on a tenant survey from 2012/13.  Further survey 

activity is being carried out in 2016/17 in order to update these indicators. 

What this tells us and how we’ll improve 
 

Current tenant arrears has risen marginally over the last two years.  We believe this reflects increased financial 

pressures faced by our tenants.  Our performance is towards the higher end of our comparator group and we will 

continue to focus on keeping arrears as low as possible.  We are investing in technology and tracking low level 

arrears cases more effectively with greater use of automated systems to alert us when new arrears cases arise.   
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Although rent written off has reduced from last year, this still remains an area where we need to improve.  We 

have continued to manage a number of legacy high arrears cases and this is driving up bad debt write offs.  We 

are focusing on ongoing management of lower level arrears cases in order to prevent further high level cases 

building up. 

Void turnaround times were impacted heavily by an unprecedented level of tenancy turnover and higher numbers 

of lower demand properties in the first half-year of 2015/16, leading to a higher void days average. Tenancy 

terminations returned to a normal level in the second half-year and a reduction in void days followed.  The rate of 

tenancy terminations entering 2016/17 was in line with previous years.  This measure is expected to improve in 

2016/17.  Rent loss through voids increased as a result of the void turnaround times and we are focused on 

reducing this throughout 2016/17. 

The performance of our maintenance function has been impacted by the organisational changes enacted in the 

year.  Satisfaction with repairs and repairs completed on time both showed reduced levels of performance.  As set 

out earlier, a detailed review of all repairs and maintenance activity is now underway which will ensure that the 

right services are being provided in the right areas and that the quality delivered to tenants improves.   

The Reduced Data Standard Assessment Procedure (RDSAP) is the methodology used by the Government to 

assess and compare the energy and environmental performance of dwellings. The assessment criteria have 

changed a number of times and we are currently unable to compare all properties under one methodology. We 

continue to survey properties using RDSAP (2009).  Following our surveys and improvements works, 50% of our 

surveyed properties are now at band C or better. 

 

Banding Rented unit count 

(2015/16) 

Rented unit count 

(2014/15) 

A - - 

B 282 260 

C 1,682 1,616 

D 1,319 1,283 

E 674 757 

F - 3 

G - - 

Total 3,957 3,919 

 

Ocean aims to achieve a minimum RDSAP (2009) score of 65 for all stock, in order to tackle fuel poverty amongst 

our customers. We will continue to re-survey and target investment to the poorest performing properties.  Ocean 

will continue to seek grant support for energy efficiency works, whether from European funding, government 

funding or contributions from the power generating industry via the energy companies' obligations. Where tenants 

have previously declined energy improvement measures, these will be undertaken when the property becomes 

void. Where it is not best value or not possible to further improve the energy performance of a property, Ocean will 

consider its future use and may decide to dispose of the property in line with the disposals policy. 

The average time taken to sell Homebuy dwellings has improved considerably.  Continued effort is made to 

reduce shared ownership sales times.  Where possible properties are marketed six months ahead of completion 

and off plan sales are incentivised.  The product offering has been reviewed and properties are now being offered 

with fitted carpets to help marketability. 

116 new homes were brought into management in 2015/16.  All external delivery targets have been met.  We will 

continue to build new homes in line with the timetable for the HCA Affordable Homes Programme and our 

development programme with Cornwall Council. 



Ocean Housing Group Limited  

13 

 

Value for Money Scorecard 
 

The latest available benchmarking information in respect of the performance of comparator organisations relates 

to 2014/15. Within our commentary we have highlighted areas where improvement was required and the progress 

we made to achieve this in 2015/16. 

The tables below outline our performance using a scorecard methodology provided by HouseMark, a national 

benchmarking consultancy for social housing providers in England. Alongside our 2014/15 and 2015/16 

performance is the median result for the organisations we compare ourselves with. It is important that, as far as 

possible, those organisations we compare ourselves with have similar characteristics to our own.  

Key 

 Ocean’s performance result is significantly better than the median for the peer group (top 20%) 

 Ocean’s performance result is better that the median for the peer group 

 Ocean’s performance result is similar to the median of the peer group 

 The median for the peer group is better than Ocean’s result 

 The median for the peer group is significantly better than Ocean’s result (bottom 20%) 

 

Grey Arrows. Trend and performance arrows for five of the cost measures in the scorecard are grey. This is 

because these four measures do not have valuative polarity (i.e. high or low is neither good nor bad).  

Process Value Previous Trend Median KPI 

Rent collected from current and former tenants 

as % of rent due (excluding arrears brought 

forward) 

98.8% 99.9%  99.5%  

Average re-let time 19.62 22.84  26.0  

Repairs completed at the first visit % 95.8% 95.5% 
 

91.2% 
 

 

Rent collection is a key focus for Ocean and it is disappointing to see the adverse trend and comparable in this 

area. In 2015/16 we have conducted a lean review of the processes involved in rent collection.  We have 

automated our notification process for low level arrears and are focusing our resources on early intervention to 

stop more serious arrears cases building up.  Ocean now encourages all tenants to build up a ‘buffer’ on their rent 

account of four weeks. We continue to promote the use of ‘any-day’ direct debits and standing orders by tenants to 

provide more certainty of rent payments. We would hope to see improvements in this area when the 2015/16 

benchmark figures. 

 

Value Value Previous Trend Median KPI 

Satisfaction with the quality of new home % 83.0% 94.0%  95.0%  

Satisfaction with the service provided % 87.0% 87.0%  86.1%  

Satisfaction with repairs and maintenance %  89.0% 89.0%  80.7%  

Satisfaction with neighbourhood % 87.0% 87.0%  85.9%  

Satisfaction that rent provides VFM % 88.0% 88.0%  82.0%  
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This value table looks at outcomes of the work we do. Satisfaction levels with new housing have fallen.  All cases 

where new residents have not expressed satisfaction are investigated.  Tenant satisfaction with new housing was 

disappointing for the year, primarily as a result of bad performance by external contractors on two sites in 

remedying defects and delivering completed units on time.  The Development team have now appointed additional 

staff resources who are specifically tasked to chase up any similar problems on new sites where we use external 

developers and it is expected that this will result in increased satisfaction in the future.   

People Value Previous Trend Median KPI 

Staff turnover in the year % 27.5% 21.5%  13.9%  

Sickness absence average days/shifts lost per 

employee 
11.9 13.2 

 
9.3 

 

 

The increase in staff turnover is heavily influenced by a number of fixed term positions coming to an end in the 

reporting period.  Ocean aims to recruit and retain the best people for the organisation and has reviewed the use 

of fixed term roles in this light.  Ocean has received positive feedback from the process of retaining its Investors in 

People accreditation and will continue to build on this success which in turn should mean an improvement to this 

lagging indicator.  Since the publication of this analysis, Ocean has brought its occupation health service in-house.  

We undertake a number of pro-active health and wellbeing initiatives and would like to see this investment return a 

continuing improvement in the level of sickness absence across the business. 

Business and Financial 
 

Value Value Previous Trend Median KPI 

Total Cost Per Property (CPP) of housing 

management 
£478 £480 

 
£444 

 

Total CPP of responsive repairs and void works £729 £713  £806  

Total CPP of major works and cyclical 

maintenance £1,245 £1,205 
 

£1,521 
 

Total overhead costs as % adjusted turnover 9.0% 9.1%  11.0%  

Current tenants arrears as % rent due (excluding 

voids) 

1.90% 1.79%  2.89%  

Rent loss due to voids as % rent due 0.56% 0.93%  1.01%  

Gross arrears written off as % rent due 1.02% 0.54%  0.44%  

Growth in turnover -0.5% 6.3%  4.6%  

Operating margin (Ocean Housing Limited) 35.4% 31.9%  27.7%  

 

Ocean has been proactive in targeting high arrears cases where the arrears are long-standing and show no 

realistic prospect of being reduced or cleared. This had led to a rise in the rate of tenants evicted during the 

period. We have also reviewed our caseload of former tenant arrears and more realistically identified those cases 

which would prove unable or uneconomical to pursue. As a result, our write-off levels has stayed high compared to 

others. 
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Turnover growth in the reported year was negative as a result of the number of first tranche shared ownership 

sales falling and Ocean moving away from the Supporting People contract with Cornwall Council.  Underlying 

rental income increased and we anticipate turnover to return to growth for the coming periods. 

Transparency 
 

We want to allow residents to have a clear understanding of what we do for them and what they pay for it. We 

want to encourage challenge and facilitate residents to exercise more choice in shaping the services they receive 

on the neighbourhoods in which they live. We continue to invest time in consulting with residents and, in 

particularly, how their services are delivered, how service charges are calculated and how they can influence what 

we do. The Tenant Scrutiny Panel has authority to challenge management and residents get the chance to 

challenge board members at an annual performance review meeting. This is all helping to strengthen 

accountability of Boards and senior management, further focussing attention on the need to deliver quality 

services at the best price. The presentation of data is therefore crucial and that is why it is good to publish financial 

information in a clear way.  

 

 

£’000 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 

Revenue maintenance 3,674 3,828 4,217 

Management and services 4,349 5,134 5,264 

Cost of shared ownership properties 2,520 1,092 1,707 

Aborted development expenses 59 207 65 

Property depreciation 3,235 3,010 2,812 

Financing costs 7,703 7,159 6,857 

How every £1 

of income has 

been spent  
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Financial Review 
 

Operating from a position of financial stability is critically important for all organisations.  Ocean has a strong balance 

sheet, secure funding sources and a robust, cash-generative, operating business model.  During the year, the financial 

position strengthened.  Group turnover increased by 7% to £32.7 million.  Income from social housing lettings has 

increased by 4% and the sale of first tranche shared ownership properties has more than doubled to £3.4 million in the 

year (2015: £1.4 million).  Operating costs in the year amounted to £23.4 million, which is £1.4 million higher than the 

year before.  The increase is mainly due to the increase in the cost of the increasing external sales.  Profit margins on 

commercial activity have increased year on year. 

Performance on financial performance indicators is reviewed by the Group Board at each meeting. The indicators for the 

year are shown below, together with how we compare to the national averages and how we have moved over time (Note 

that the years 2012/13 and 2013/14 are stated in Old UK GAAP).  A definition of the terminology for the performance 

indicators can be found at Annex 2 at the end of this VFM section. 

 

Performance Indicator Bench-
mark 

2015/16 
 Target 

2015/16 
Actual 

2014/15 
 Actual 

2013/14 
 Actual 

2012/13 
 Actual 

Asset cover (%) N/A 137% 140% 140% 143% 147% 

Gearing (%) 52% 87% 88% 88% 84% 84% 
Consolidated operating margin (%) 27% 25% 28% 28% 28% 30% 
Interest cover (%) 145% 123% 130% 121% 143% 149% 

Average cost of borrowing (%) 4.6% 5.50% 6.05% 6.09% 5.04% 5.09% 
Debt per unit (£’000) £17.2 £33.0 £31.5 £29.3 £28.7 £26.3 
Pre-tax profit from commercial subsidiaries (£’000) N/A £700 £1,851 £1,398 £734 £1,295 
 

Performance of Gilbert and Goode Limited in 2015/16 was excellent, substantially exceeding targeted operating profits. 

Such results support our tenants in Ocean Housing through the quality of the services provided to them by the company 

and the payment of £340,000 of gift aid through profit generated from external contracts in 2015/16. This gift aid will go 

directly to supporting Ocean’s new build programme.  

In respect of Ocean Housing Limited, all loan covenant requirements were met and the loan agreement requirements 

wholly and completely honoured. The average cost of borrowing is influenced by the substantial level of fixed long term 

debt within Ocean Housing Limited, which gives certainty of planning, but precludes the opportunity to capitalise fully on 

existing low levels of interest rates.  Although distorted through a higher than planned level of fixed debt, we recognise 

that our cost of borrowing is higher than the sector average and we are targeting to reduce this cost over time.   

The debt per unit is higher than the average at Ocean. This has always been the case and represents the significant 

investment that was required in the stock when Ocean originally purchased the homes from Restormel Borough Council, 

together with a development programme over the years that has seen us deliver more new homes than other housing 

associations of similar size. This illustrates Ocean’s commitment to maximise the use of its assets, particularly the 

security value that they provide, in order to maximise delivery of new homes for local people and supporting the local 

economy. 

The interest and asset cover tests shown in above table are calculated on the basis of the Ocean Housing Limited loan 

agreement with Santander, which has our tightest loan covenants.  The interest cover test comfortably meets lender’s 

covenants even though those terms are stronger than the more common measures of calculation. 

Our operating margin is an area where we are targeting improvement and the fulfilment of the VFM objectives embedded 

in the Corporate Strategy, as set out in the Continuous Improvement section later, will see our margin increase to 

strengthen Ocean’s viability and resilience to the increasingly challenging environment in which the sector operates. 
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Maximising Returns 

It is in the interest of everyone for Ocean to maximize the positive impact of its assets and resources. This theme 

looks at how we have diversified and continue to grow. It links to two of our corporate objectives: 

 Provide innovative, energy efficient, good quality homes 

 Provide good quality services, right first time 

 

Diversification  
 

Diversification, and the structure of the Group, allows freedom for its building contractor to generate profit and through 

financial success. The Group structure provides freedoms yet at the same time protects the social housing assets (our 

tenant’s homes) from commercial risk. The Group structure is kept under regular review. The protection of our social 

housing assets is paramount to us and we always have that as our priority.   

 

Understanding our Assets 
 

Ocean reviews the financial performance of all its properties using an analysis tool called the Stock Financial Appraisal 

Model.  The tool allows the asset base to be analysed at different levels of detail, ranging from individual property by 

property, right up to neighbourhood level.  The tool can also be used to review the financial performance of the asset 

base in different categories, for example, by different types of property, number of bedrooms, SAP ratings, construction 

type etc. 

The key metrics analysed are: Net Present Value (NPV) and rental yields.  The output of the Stock Financial Appraisal 

Model is used to inform decision making specifically in respect of asset disposals or regeneration projects.  Indeed, it is 

the cornerstone of our Asset Management practices as we seek to maximise value from our homes.  

Using the output of the model, 2% of our individual properties show a negative NPV, which means they do not add value 

to the Group.  The reasons behind specific negative NPVs are low rent levels and relatively high maintenance and 

management costs.  At a neighbourhood level, all our schemes deliver positive NPVs, therefore issues with specific 

properties are investigated to understand why NPVs differ from the wider scheme perspective.  Properties identified as 

not providing sound value to Ocean have been subject to review.  A number of assets have been sold and an 

underperforming, older persons’ scheme has been redeveloped. 

The average unit NPV is £37,500.  5% of our properties have a Net Present Value of less than £10,000. 10% have an 

NPV between £10,000 and £20,000. 62% have a NPV between £20,000 - £50,000 and 23% have NPVs higher than 

£50,000. 

Properties which are highlighted as providing low returns are reviewed in conjunction with their potential disposal value 

and where it is deemed appropriate, put forward for sale on the open market when they become vacant. The Asset 

Disposal Policy has been adopted to ensure that poor performing assets are identified and disposed of, if this provides 

optimum value to Ocean. During the 2015/16 year, eight properties were disposed of.  Ocean Housing is targeting to 

deliver value through asset disposals of £500,000 per annum from April 2015 to March 2020.  The table below sets out 

the value generated (in NPV terms) from asset sales over the last three financial years. 

 

 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Value delivered through asset disposals £126,000 £208,000 £443,000 £762,000 

 

Value gains realised by asset disposals have directly contributed to new build development programmes.  Over 

£1.0 million generated over the last two years has contributed to Ocean’s new build development within the HCA’s 
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Affordable Homes Programme.  Other gains, both already realised and those targeted for the future, will contribute 

towards further house building outside of the HCA programmes. 

Valuation of assets 
 

The latest full valuation of Ocean’s housing properties was professionally undertaken on 31 March 2015 by Savills (L&P) 

Ltd and return a value of £199,453,000 for loan security purposes. 

Developing New Homes 
 

Cornwall has a combination of high house prices and low earnings. There is a shortage of housing and a limited supply 

of sites for new housing. Only two-thirds of the homes the area needs each year are being built. Building homes supports 

economic growth and creates jobs in the local economy. Ocean is committed to helping meet these needs. 

 

In 2015/16, Ocean invested £14 million building affordable homes, an increase in the investment of more than 20%. 116 

homes were brought into management in the year, up from 72 in 2014/15. This is a major spend for the Group, so 

significant focus is given on how the programme is delivered to optimise quality, sustainability and Value for Money. The 

majority of the programme is delivered by the Group’s in-house construction company, Gilbert and Goode Limited, which 

is a strong Board policy objective to protect quality, ensure use of local labour and control delivery and costs. 

 

The total average cost of each unit brought into management was £147,000 in 2015/16, up from £113,000 in 2014/15.  

The cost per unit varies depending on the type and location of properties as well as whether the properties were built in-

house or purchased from private developers under their obligation to provide affordable housing to meet planning 

requirements (known as Section 106 units).  The increase in cost per unit is due to a range of reasons.  The proportion of 

‘own build’ units increased with only 12% of new builds being brought in under Section 106 agreements compared to 

43% last year.  In 2015/16, 10% of the new units related to the demolition and redevelopment of an old block of flats, 

thus incurring higher costs than a typical new build scheme.  Also, 5% of the new units in 2015/16 were purchased on 

the open market and converted to affordable rented units.  These factors contributed to the increase in bringing new 

homes into management.  Delivering new homes internally, whilst more expensive, allows greater control over quality 

with a goal of lower long term maintenance costs.  Our customer satisfaction feedback indicates that the number of 

customers satisfied with their property is greater for homes built by Gilbert and Goode.   

 

Debt and Treasury 
 

The Group finances its operations primarily through a long-term loan facility of £130 million with Abbey National Treasury 

Services (Santander) and £20 million bonds issued under a Note Purchase Agreement with M&G Investments.   

 

Santander Loan Facility 2016 2015 2014 

Fixed rate loans £90,000,000 £100,000,000 £100,000,000 

Variable rate loans £15,000,000 £3,000,000 £11,500,000 

Total loans £105,000,000 £103,000,000 £111,500,000 

Underlying average total interest cost 6.32% 6.10% 5.04% 

Total facility  £130,000,000 £130,000,000 £130,000,000 
 

M&G Investments 2016 2015 2014 

Fixed rate notes £20,000,000 £20,000,000 N/A 

Underlying average total interest cost 4.66% 4.66% N/A 

Total financing agreed £50,000,000 £50,000,000 N/A 

 

At the year-end, undrawn committed facilities amounted to £25 million (2015: £27 million) and the average maturity of net 

debt was over five years. At the year-end, 12.0% (2015: 2.4%) of the Group’s portfolio remained on variable rates. 
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Supporting Communities and Protecting the Environment 

Providing local people with much needed affordable homes delivers a great deal of social value. However, our work 
goes further than this; we deliver a range of further social and environmental initiatives linking to three of our 
corporate objectives: 
 

 Have residents at the heart of everything we do 

 Be an employer of choice, creating local job and training opportunities, recruiting and retaining the best 
people 

 Provide innovative, energy efficient, good quality homes  
 

 

Our corporate strategy sets out our core social purpose: 

“To invest in homes, jobs, training and growth to improve Cornwall’s economic future.” 

Developing much needed affordable homes, and managing our existing stock, are the foundations of our work, but our 

core purpose is about more than bricks and mortar. During the year, we have continued to focus on how we can 

maximise the positive impact of the work Ocean does and have added value through a wide range of resident and 

community empowerment activities. 

Ensuring local procurement 
 

With a significant turnover we are keen to ensure that we maximise the impact of our work on the local economy. 

Wherever possible we use local suppliers and over 80% of our total expenditure is to locally based businesses and 

therefore retained in the Cornish economy. 

Our Employees 
 

We are one of the largest employers locally and we aim to reduce benefit dependency and put money into the local 

economy by ensuring our employees are paid a fair and competitive wage. Our lowest paid full time staff receive 6% 

more than the ‘living wage’, whilst our staff costs remain competitive when assessed against our peers.  

Supporting our customers 
 

Ocean has invested in additional staff to support residents struggling with debt and changes to welfare benefits. 

Prevention is more effective than cure, and our services are increasingly geared towards proactive engagement and 

early intervention. With limited support, particularly face-to-face, available locally, we are confident that our active 

approach adds significant value, preventing evictions and reducing debt related stress amongst our residents. 

In 2015/16 we have continued to engage with households impacted by changes to Housing Benefit, supporting them in a 

range of ways; from completing financial health checks, to providing benefit advice and signposting wider support. We 

have actively supported residents needing to move which, along with alleviating the financial stress of households, is 

also maximising the use of our housing stock. 

In total we have worked with over 450 households and directly supported over 80 downsizing moves, removing 

households from the impact of the spare room subsidy.  The team has supported c.750 applications for discretionary 

housing payments with successful claims reaching over £200,000. 

Whilst we have taken a pro-active approach to addressing the impact of the welfare reforms thus far, we recognise that 

Ocean may face additional costs in the future.  These costs are provided for in the long term business plan and have 

been subject to stress testing.   
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In order to minimise the impact on both our business and our customers, we are developing our processes and 

procedures to address a range of issues arising from further planned reform to welfare and benefits, including direct 

payment to tenants through Universal Credit. We have developed a comprehensive action plan to ensure our readiness 

and have already begun to develop our services. For example; previously, Ocean’s offer was for direct debit payments to 

be taken from customer bank accounts on the 1st of each month.  In 2013/14, a second day of the 15th of each month 

was added and in 2014/15, Ocean implemented the offer of “any day” direct debit payment options making it easier for 

tenants to organise their financial affairs. 

The number of active direct debit instructions increased in 2015/16 by 5% and we now have over 1,250 live direct debit 

mandates which represents a 30% increase over the last three years. A further 600 customers pay by standing order 

meaning that, in total, over 40% of our customers pay by regular bank transfer.  Ocean will continue to encourage the 

use of direct debits and standing orders as methods of payment, where appropriate.  Increasing the uptake of these 

payment types enables more efficiency in the rent collecting function. 

Ocean has refined its “Direct Payment” pilot exercise working with tenants in one of our larger schemes to help us test 

our processes and services in readiness for the roll out of Universal Credit.  This is helped us shape our service offering 

for those who will move to Universal Credit. 

We provide a wide range of additional services to our residents, some examples of which are detailed below. For more 

information please visit our website: 

 We treat all reports of Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) seriously and work in partnership with tenants and any 

partner agency to ensure a co-ordinated approach. In the year we dealt with 295 incidents of ASB, with 89% of 

tenants satisfied with the handling of their complaint.  Satisfaction levels have fallen from 93% a year ago 

however the time taken to resolve cases has improved.  We are seeing and recording a lot more lower level ASB 

cases and believe that these types of cases are more challenging for us to resolve to the satisfaction of all 

parties.  Continued effort is made to manage our estates to provide good quality neighbourhoods. 

 Ocean Extra provides a self-paying service for older vulnerable people, including a life line alarm system and 

regular visits. The team also arranges a number of activities for older people in and around our category 2 older 

person schemes. 

 We actively monitor vulnerable residents for their wellbeing and to ensure they can sustain their tenancies, with 

referrals being made as necessary to statutory support agencies. 

Alongside their role supporting the Tenants and Residents, Scrutiny, Editorial and Value for Money Panels, our Tenant 

Involvement and Social Inclusion Team delivers a range of initiatives to support our local communities and customers. 

Two examples are provided below, with further details regularly updated on our website: 

 Junior wardens. Ocean Housing runs the popular Junior Wardens programme for 8-12 year olds. The 

programme takes place over the six week summer holiday period. As part of the scheme, the young people learn 

about: their community and community values; what to do in an emergency; how to recognise and report 

problems to the right people; the importance of recycling; looking after their environment; boosting community 

spirit. From beach safety and body boarding, to fire fighting simulation, our programme focuses on community 

values, making friends and having fun.  

 We have established an Ambassadors Club as a reward for older tenants who have contributed significantly to 

the work of Ocean. The Club meets quarterly and members receive progress reports from all involvement panels 

and updates on housing management. They also attend a range of openings and events, representing the Ocean 

Group.  The Ambassadors Club have had the opportunity to provide feedback on new build design and layout 

which was taken back to the development team to feed into future schemes. 
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Employment related support 
 

We continue to support apprenticeships across our business. Working with Cornwall College, we employ around 10-13 

apprentices at any one point in time working across the Ocean Group in a range of fields including: carpentry, plumbing 

and heating, masonry, electro-technical services and business administration.  Ocean is committed to providing training 

opportunities and, as part of our rolling programme, we have recently appointed six new apprentices in September 2016 

replacing those who have come to the end of their formal training.   

Following an assessment of the role played by our Tenancy Employment Co-ordinator, we felt that the outcomes being 

achieved did not benefit a sufficient number of tenants when compared to the resources invested.  As a result we have 

redirect the focus of our resources and committed more to supporting tenants through changes in welfare benefits.  We 

believe this will support more of our tenants with the limited resources available. 

Charities 
 

During the year we supported a number of local charities donating £3,215 (2015: £6,070). 

How we measure our impact  
 

All of our community engagement and social inclusion activities are assessed by the Tenant Involvement and Social 

Inclusion Team to determine whether objectives were met and to assess their impact against costs. These assessments 

are reviewed annually by our internal auditors and enable us to determine which projects were worthwhile and which 

were less so. The long term impact of projects is often difficult to fully realise and assess, but this process ensures there 

is an on-going consideration about the effectiveness of our investments. In a number of areas we are developing our 

approach to impact assessments, surveying customers before and after their involvement, to enable consistent and 

comparable measurement. 

It is well documented that housing conditions, quality and tenure impact significantly on the quality of life of residents and 

their wellbeing. The development of new homes and the maintenance, management and improvement of our existing 

homes, and our wider support of resident and communities creates significant social value.  We do not attempt to put a 

monetary figure on this. 

Protecting the Environment and fighting fuel poverty 
 

The Ocean Housing Group has successfully completed re-certification for ISO 14001 for our Environmental Management 

system. The organisation continues to monitor and manage its impact on the environment with the aim of minimising this 

impact. Our CO2 emissions, and other greenhouse gases, continue to be reported annually in the GHG (Green House 

Gas) Report and the Group has seen a 14% reduction in CO2 emissions year-on-year.  

We continue to support residents who are suffering from fuel poverty, by offering guidance on the effective use of their 

heating system and comparison of energy provider tariffs. In the year we visited over 50 households that had been 

signposted as requiring support by our Welfare Advice Team, or who responded to our promotion of the service. 
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Continuous Improvement 

All companies within the Group strive for continuous improvement in the services and Value for Money we provide. 
This theme links to three of our corporate objectives: 
 

 Be an employer of choice, creating local job and training opportunities, recruiting and retaining the best 
people 

 Provide innovative, energy efficient, good quality homes 

 Continue to strengthen our governance 
 

 

Value for Money achievements in 2015/16: 
 

We are always striving for Value for Money, and every decision our Board makes has to be tested against whether 

it is Value for Money. 

We also select specific areas of the business each year to receive a critical look at how things are done. Can we 

do more? Can we do it better?  Is it what our customers want?  Each year specific projects are set to focus on and 

monitored by Board.  These are agreed as part of setting the Corporate Strategy.  Some of the most prominent are 

listed below: 

 We are always aware that overheads are a burden on services and need to be as low as possible.  We 

have been efficient in this area (consistently in the best quartile in Housemark benchmarking on Overhead 

cost per unit and as a percentage of turnover), but still look to do better.  The growth of Gilbert and Goode 

has enabled the social housing activities in Ocean Housing to benefit from lower overhead charges.  

Overheads attributed to social housing activity have reduced by £87,000 in 2015/16 compared to the 

previous year. 

 We spend over £6 million per year on maintaining and improving our houses, and as such, we always 

work hard on keeping down the costs of materials.  In 2015/16, our membership of the Advantage South 

West procurement consortium saved us £250,000.  

 In-house delivery of the maintenance programme ensures that tight control on costs can be achieved, as 

well as maximising savings on VAT. The use of this VAT efficient in-house model means the equivalent of 

a 5% VAT rate on the whole programme, a value estimated at £300,000. 

 We have focused on procurement activity in 2015/16 and have established a new post of Group 

Procurement Manager.  This new post has helped us get better Value for Money in contracts let in the 

year.  A number of contract negotiations have taken place in the year which has led to a combined annual 

financial benefit of £164,000. 

 As set out earlier, the Group restructure in 2015 resulted in costs being reduced by £313,000 in 2015/16.  

The full year benefit in 2016/17 is expected to be £650,000. 

 A number of management cost reduction initiatives have been delivered in the year resulting in a saving of 

£62,000.  These include staff efficiencies and reviewing the timing and method of tenant communications. 

 There were a number of other VFM successes in the year. With an embedded culture of VFM in the 

Group, and requirement that all Board decisions are supported by standard reports specifically requiring 

identification the VFM benefit of all recommendations, we can be confident that Board is fully aware of its 

actions and consequences in respect of this area. 
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The table below summarises the Efficiency savings delivered in 2015/16.  These are presented as prominent 
examples.  There have been a number of other less material VFM achievements in the year in addition to 
those items individually highlighted below. 
 
 

Efficiency item Saving amount 

Procurement – Insurance £36,000 

Procurement – Legal Services £60,000 

Procurement – Waste Management £33,000 

Procurement – Asbestos surveys £35,000 

Management costs £62,000 

Overheads – costs reductions £87,000 

Group restructure  £313,000 

VAT savings arising from group structure £300,000 

Grand total £926,000 

 
The savings generated in 2015/16 directly contributed to Ocean minimising its operating costs, maintaining and 
enhancing services offered to customers and, importantly, minimising its long term loan borrowings.  Recurring 
savings will also support Ocean’s aspirations of delivering more affordable housing in future years. 
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Value for Money - future aspirations 
 

Underpinning the business plan is the Group’s strategic plan to improve efficiency and create value. This plan is 

the hub of Ocean’s VFM strategic vision to 2020 and sets challenging but essential targets to be met in terms of 

delivering efficiency in management and maintenance costs.  Also, the creation of value through the disposal of 

existing assets, and the creation of profit from external activity in contracts and open market house sales. This 

plan is set to ensure existing service quality is protected, new homes continue to be built to the highest standards, 

and our role in supporting the local economy and its communities remains strong and influential. 

Ocean’s VFM approach is embedded into its Corporate Strategy to enshrine the culture throughout the Group at 

all times.  The cornerstone of the VFM policy is the plan to generate value and deliver operational savings.  The 

Financial Improvement Plan will see: 

 £5.4 million of value being generated by 2020 through asset disposals, external contracts and open market 

sales. 

 £4.0 million of annual operational cost savings being delivered through efficiencies in management, 

maintenance, development and treasury by March 2018. 

Ocean is well on course to deliver these savings.  The progress is shown below and achievements against this 

plan will be monitored by Board and reported to stakeholders regularly.  

 

Ocean’s Value Generation Target: £5.4 million by 2020 
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Ocean’s Operational Savings Target: £4.0 million per year by 2018 

 

  £2.2 million (55% of target) achieved and embedded in operational budgets for 2016/17 

 

  £1.8 million (45% of target) identified through further saving initiatives to be delivered in future budgets 

 

Impact on Headline Social Housing Cost per unit 

The future VFM aspirations have been adopted into the financial business plan.  The impact this has on the 

‘Headline Social Housing Cost’ per unit as defined by the HCA is set out below compared to the sector average.  

Ocean has comparatively low costs and this is set to continue as the Financial Improvement Plan is achieved. 
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Conclusion 

Ocean is committed to delivering Value for Money to its customers. It recognises the need to provide quality 

services to its residents, and appreciates this has to be done in a transparent, efficient and economic manner. 

Ocean’s Board believes it has met the requirements of the regulatory standard, not least as its passion to do the 

best it can for its residents is the driving force behind the Group’s Strategy and Five Golden Threads; the first of 

which being; 

 

‘Have residents at the heart of everything we do’. 
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Assessment of Value for Money and financial performance - Annex 1 

Benchmarking Group: Large Scale Voluntary Transfer Housing Associations, South of England – 2014/15 

Name Stock Size Region 

Accent South 3,547 South West 

Alliance Homes 6,044 South West 

Bracknell Forest Homes 5,893 South East 

Coastline Housing 3,836 South West 

Cottsway Housing Association 4,156 South East 

Golding Homes 6,405 South East 

Housing Solutions 3,836 South East 

Magna Housing Association 6,021 South West 

Magna West Somerset Housing Association 2,151 South West 

MHS Homes 7,373 South East 

North Devon Homes 3,165 South West 

Phoenix Community Housing 5,389 London 

Poplar HARCA 6,113 London 

Raven Housing Trust 5,081 South East 

Red Kite 5,944 South East 

Richmond Housing Partnership 6,750 London 

Saxon Weald 5,412 South East 

Selwood 5,745 South West 

Sentinel Housing Association 7,879 South East 

Soha 5,400 South East 

Teign Housing 3,530 South West 

Town and Country Housing Group 7,879 South East 

Two Rivers Housing 3,782 South West 

Vale of Aylesbury Housing Trust 7,275 South East 

West Kent Housing Association 6,300 South East 
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Assessment of Value for Money and financial performance - Annex 2 

Definition of terminology use in financial performance indicator section 

Asset Cover 

This is the ratio of our assets values (value of our houses) compared to the amount of money we have borrowed 

which is secured against those assets. 

Gearing 

This is the value of our long term borrowing compared to the total value of the business. 

Operating margin 

This is the level of surplus generated by the business divided by the total income. 

Interest cover 

This ratio tells you whether the business can meet its interest costs.  It is roughly calculated by dividing the 

operating surplus by the interest costs.   

Average cost of borrowing 

This is the average rate interest cost paid by the business. 

Debt per unit 

This is the amount of borrowings divided by the number of houses owned. 
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3. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
During 2015/16 the Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee approved a Board Risk Assurance Control Framework.  

The framework provides a link from the risk map to the corporate strategy and Ocean’s Golden Threads.  It details three 

levels of control Board members can use to set assurance that risks are adequately controlled and to identify early 

warning signs members need to be aware of to manage the key risks to the business. 

The Group considers that it has a robust system of risk management and internal control.  The risk management 

framework forms part of an integrated internal control environment that is overseen and controlled by the Group Audit, 

Risk and Assurance Committee.  The formal framework for the ongoing identification, quantification and management of 

risk is co-ordinated by the Risk Management Group, however, risk awareness is considered to be embedded in the 

Ocean culture. 

Operational risks are split into subsidiary company risk maps, but those of greater significance are included in a Strategic 

Risk Map which is reviewed regularly by management, the Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee and Group 

Board. The risks are reviewed and where failings in internal control are identified there is action taken to resolve them. 

The Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee is actively involved in this process. During the year the Group Audit, 

Risk and Assurance Committee has reviewed the Risk Strategy, incorporating the Strategic Risk Map, at every meeting, 

thus enhancing awareness and control. It has provided robust management to mitigate the greater exposure to risk as a 

result of challenging prevailing economic conditions throughout the last couple of years.  

Every risk is quantified to assess the exposure that Ocean faces even after control measures have been established and 

embedded against each risk. The estimated equated risk exposure for the whole Group is c.£3 million. This exposure is 

incorporated into the Group’s business planning framework and the current approved business plan specifically includes 

a £3 million contingency against its £180 million loan facility.  

Each risk is assessed as to its probability of occurring and the impact on the business, were it to do so. Each risk is 

scored both without any form of controls in place and after adequate controls have been adopted. For each risk the 

controls required to adequately manage it are listed and tested every three months as to their effectiveness. All risks are 

reviewed as to their relevance and rating every three months so as to ensure they are appropriate, particularly the 

Strategic Risk Map.   

The scoring matrix uses to assess each risk is illustrated in the table below; 

RISK SCORING MATRIX 

Impact Probability 
 

10 – Disastrous 6 – Highly likely 
8 – Severe 5 – Likely 
6 – Large 4 – Fairly likely 
4 – Moderate 3 – Unlikely 
2 – Negligible 2 – Very unlikely 
 1 – Extremely unlikely 

 

Every year the Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee co-ordinated a review of all Ocean’s Boards approach to 

risk appetite to ensure it remained appropriate for the Group’s constituent members during these economically 

challenging times and undertook, through its internal auditors, a review of risk maturity which gave positive assurance. 
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In the year the Board adopted a matrix of risk appetite based on the following definitions: 

 Averse - Avoidance of risk and uncertainty is a key objective. 

 Minimal - Preference for ultra-safe options that are low risk and only have a potential for limited reward. 

 Cautious - Preference for safe options that have a low degree of risk and may only have limited potential for 
reward. 

 Open - Willing to consider all potential options and choose the one most likely to result in successful delivery, 
while also providing an acceptable level of reward and value for money. 

 Hungry - Eager to be innovative and to choose options offering potentially higher business rewards, despite 
greater inherent risk. 

 

Ocean Housing Limited has classified itself as Risk Cautious.  Gilbert and Goode Limited has classified itself as Risk 

Open. 

Board Risk Assurance Control Framework 

 

 
 

 

Strategic Report (incorporating the Operational and Financial Review) signed by order of the Board  

 

 

 

 

 

Dennis Spilsbury 

Chairman  
21 September 2016 

Principal Inherent Risk Inherent Risk Rating Residual Risk Rating

The Strategic Risk Map Impact Probability Score Impact Probability Score

10 6 60 8 6 48

10 6 60 8 6 48

Exposure to housing market volatility 10 5 50 6 4 24

Poor governance and regulatory failure 10 5 50 10 1 10

8 5 40 6 3 18

8 5 40 8 3 24

8 5 40 6 4 24

10 4 40 10 2 20

8 5 40 6 3 18

Unviable development programme 8 5 40 6 3 18

Poor customer service and loss of good 

reputation

Adverse impact of rent controls and 

other Government policies

Negative impact of welfare reform on 

tenants

Failure of asset management and 

demand for property

Failure to make required profits from 

external activity

Staffing problems, sickness, 

recruitment and retention 

Failure of treasury, cashflow or funding 

arrangements 
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Board’s report for the year to 31 March 2016 

The Board presents its report and audited financial statements for the year to 31 March 2016.  

Introduction 

Ocean Housing Group Limited is a company limited by guarantee.  The Company was created in 2003 to act as the parent 

for the Ocean Group of Companies.  It is registered with the Homes and Communities Agency. The Company commenced 

operations on 2 August 2004, although the Group commenced operating on 26 May 2004 when, at a Special General 

Meeting, the Board of Ocean Housing Limited resolved to amend its memorandum and articles of association and become 

a subsidiary undertaking of Ocean Housing Group Limited. 

Principal activities 

The principal activity of the Company is to provide corporate and strategic services to the Company’s subsidiary 

undertakings and the Group as a whole. 

The principal activities of the subsidiary Companies are as follows: 

 Ocean Housing Limited; the provision of general needs social housing 

 Gilbert & Goode Limited; the provision of new build affordable homes for the Ocean Group and other housing 

associations and building and contracting services 

 Ocean Services (SW) Limited – On 31 August 2015 the main trade of Ocean Services (SW) Limited was transferred to 

Ocean Housing Limited, effectively bringing in-house the maintenance work for that company.  Ocean Services (SW) 

Limited ceased to trade on 10 November 2015. 

 A quarter share of Advantage South West LLP, a joint venture entity promoting modern methods of construction 

in the housing sector 

 

Results 

The Company’s surplus for the year after tax is £219,000 (2015: £55,000 surplus). This amount was transferred to revenue 

reserves.  For the Group overall a £2,348,000 surplus after tax was generated (2015: £1,272,000 surplus). 

 

Market value of land and buildings 

The Company itself owns no land or buildings, however, the Group’s holding of land and buildings at net book value on 

31 March 2016 is £180 million (2015: £172 million). The value remains at £456 million (2015: £456 million) on the basis of 

open market value. 

 

Going concern 

The Board has a reasonable expectation that adequate resources will be available for the foreseeable future and for this 

reason they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. 

Employees 

The Company employed 23 staff at 31 March 2016 (2015: 24 staff). During the year there was an average of 22 staff 

(2015: 23 staff).  The Group employed an average of 242 employees during the year (2015: 253 employees) with an 

average during the year of 236 full time equivalent employees (2015: 241 employees). Effective employment policies are in 

place and good practice is always followed. 

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance 

The Company has maintained directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the year. 
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Board’s report for the year to 31 March 2016 (continued) 

 

Executive officers’ remuneration 

The remuneration of the Group Chief Executive is determined by the Board, following consideration by the Remuneration 

Committee.  The Committee also discusses and agrees the remuneration of the Group Director of Resources and the 

Managing Directors of Ocean Housing Limited and Gilbert & Goode Limited. 

Board member remuneration 

Throughout the year the Board made payment to its Board members.  Fixed annual salaries of £3,000 (2015: £3,000) per 

year are payable to members, with the Chair receiving £16,577 (2015: £16,577). In addition, the Chairman of the Group 

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee receives an annual salary of £7,500 (2015: £7,500). The option to pay was 

embraced by the Board as a means to enhance the level of quality, governance and management and at the same time 

develop appraisal methods in line with recommended good practice. The payment of Board members is exercised 

throughout the Group via the Remuneration Committee. In making the decision the Board considers the National Housing 

Federation publication ‘To Pay or not to Pay’ revised In February 2009 – "Board Member Pay, Principles And 

Practicalities". 

 

Equal opportunities and diversity 

The Group is committed to an equal opportunities policy within which it actively encourages applications for employment and 

housing from all groups in society. It is policy that any persons who are included within the diversity strands should be 

considered for housing, employment, training, career development and promotion on the basis of their abilities and access 

to opportunities is open to all. The services of any existing employee who becomes disabled are retained wherever possible.  

Treasury management and financial instruments 

Treasury operations for the Company and Group are managed by the Group Director of Resources within parameters set 

down by the Board through its Treasury Management Strategy. This activity is reported and monitored by the Board. The 

process is subject to review by external and internal auditors. 

The Group’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and liquid resources and various items such as trade debtors 

and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the 

Group’s operations.  The Company’s borrowings are provided by internal lending from Ocean Housing Limited. 

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk and liqu idity risk.  These risks are 

summarised below: 

Interest rate risk 

The Group finances its operations through a potential mixture of generated surpluses and a long-term loan facility. The 

Group portfolio is a mix of floating and fixed rates through its long term facility. At the year end 89% (2015: 98%) of the 

Group’s borrowings were at fixed rates of interest. 

 

Liquidity risk 

Continuity of funding is ensured by arranging borrowings and committed facilities and by limiting the amount of debt 

repayable in any one year. At the year end undrawn committed facilities amounted to £25 million (2015: £27 million) and 

the average maturity of net debt, including these facilities exceeded five years (see note 12). 
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Board’s report for the year to 31 March 2016 (continued) 

 

Health and safety 

The Company and the Group recognise their responsibilities under Health and Safety at work legislation and, as far as is 

reasonably practicable, provide and maintain a safe working environment for all staff.   The Company and Group have a 

comprehensive Health and Safety Policy which is regularly reviewed.  They also have a Health and Safety Committee 

which meets three times a year. During the year the Ocean Group maintained accreditation to OHSAS 18001 standard. 

 

Environmental position 

The Company recognises its responsibilities under environmental legislation and is committed to promoting and delivering 

its services in the most sustainable manner including the investment in new technologies when the opportunity permits.  

The Group has an Environmental Policy and a sound framework of procedures supporting this.  During 2015/16, the 

Ocean Group maintained accreditation to ISO 14001 standard. 

 
Future developments 

The formation of the Ocean Group of companies was the outcome of a comprehensive strategic review by members and 

senior executives of Ocean Housing Limited during 2003.  The underlying strategy underpinning the aspirations of the 

Group is regularly reviewed. Key developments for the Group in the future are the planned building of 250 affordable 

homes to 2020 and the continued improvement of housing services to the existing tenants of the Group’s registered 

provider subsidiary undertaking.    

The Group will strive continually to deliver services at optimum efficiency and use best practice and innovation to achieve 

its objectives. In particular it will positively promote the use of modern methods of construction through its own 

development programme and involvement in Advantage South West LLP, a joint venture entity in which the Ocean Group 

have a quarter share. In the coming year the Group will review again its vision as its seeks innovative ways to further 

expand its programme of building new affordable homes to meet the extensive demand in Cornwall against the 

background of reduced grant support. 

Auditor 

KPMG LLP was re-appointed auditor on 21 September 2016. 
 

Disclosure of information to auditors  

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, 

there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps 

that he / she ought to have taken as a Director to make himself / herself aware of any relevant audit information and to 

establish that the Company auditor is aware of that information. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dennis Spilsbury 
Chairman  
21 September 2016 
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Board Report and 

the financial statements 

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable 

law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have 

elected to prepare the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and 

applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102, the Financial Reporting Standard 

applicable to the UK and Republic of Ireland. 

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of their surplus or deficit for that period. In preparing 

these financial statements, the directors are required to: 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

 make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of Recommended Practice have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group 
and the company will continue in business. 

 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

association's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and 

Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and 

Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. They have 

general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to 

prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the 

company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ 

from legislation in other jurisdictions. 
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Report of the Board on internal control 

The Board has overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the whole system of internal control and for reviewing 

its effectiveness within the Company and Group. 

The Board recognises that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance or eliminate all risk.  The system 

of internal control is designed to manage risk and to provide reasonable assurance about the preparation and reliability of 

financial and operational information and the safeguarding of the Company’s and Group’s assets and interests. 

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board has adopted a risk-based approach to internal controls which is embedded within 

the normal management and governance process.  This approach includes the regular evaluation of the nature and extent 

of risks to which the Company and Group is exposed and is consistent with Turnbull principles, and application of the 

Homes and Communities Agency requirements in respect of the regulatory standards, in particular the governance and 

viability standard. 

The process adopted by the Board in reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, together with some of 

the key elements of the control framework includes: 

 Identification and evaluation of key risks and its risk appetite 

Management responsibility has been clearly defined for the identification, evaluation and control of significant risks.  

There is a formal and ongoing process of management review in each area of the Company’s and Group’s activities.  

This process is co-ordinated through a regular reporting framework by the Risk Management Group.  The Executive 

Group regularly considers reports on significant risks facing Ocean and the Group Chief Executive is responsible for 

reporting to the Board any significant changes affecting key risks. 

 Monitoring and corrective action 

A process of control self-assessment and regular management reporting on control issues provides assurance to the 

Executive Group and to the Board.  This includes a rigorous procedure for ensuring that corrective action is taken in 

relation to any significant control issues, particularly those with a material impact on the financial statements. 

 Control environment and control procedures 

The Board retains responsibility for a defined range of issues covering operational, financial and compliance issues 

including the appraisal of new investment projects.  The Board has adopted, and disseminated to employees, the 

NHF code of governance “Excellence in governance – revised July 2015”. This sets out Ocean’s policies with regard 

to the quality, integrity and ethics of its employees.  It is supported by a framework of policies and procedures with 

which employees must comply.  These cover issues such as delegated authority, segregation of duties, accounting, 

treasury management, health and safety, data and asset protection and fraud prevention and detection. 

 Information and financial reporting systems 

Financial reporting procedures include detailed budgets for the year ahead and forecasts for subsequent years.  

These are reviewed and approved by the Board.  The Board also regularly reviews key performance indicators to 

assess progress towards the achievement of key business objectives, targets and outcomes for the Company and 

Group. 
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Report of the Board on internal control (continued) 

The internal control framework and the risk management process are subject to regular review by Internal Audit who 

are responsible for providing independent assurance to the Board via the Group Audit, Risk and Assurance 

Committee.  The Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee considers internal control at each of its meetings 

during the year. At all of its meetings the Group Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee reviews the Risk Strategy to 

ensure that it is appropriate to meet the increasing pressures faced by the Board including its appetite to risk. 

The Board has received the Group Chief Executive’s annual report, has conducted its annual review of the effectiveness of 

the system of internal control and has taken account of any changes needed to maintain the effectiveness of the risk 

management and control process. 

The Board confirms that there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by 

Ocean.  This process has been in place throughout the year under review, up to the date of the annual report and is 

reviewed annual by the board. 

By order of the Board. 
 

 

 

David Renwick 

Group Chief Executive 

21 September 2016 
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Plym House 

3 Longbridge Road 

Marsh Mills 

Plymouth  PL6 8LT 

 

Independent auditor's report to the members of Ocean Housing Group 

Limited 

We have audited the Group and Company financial statements of Ocean Housing Group Limited ("the Company") for the 

year ended 31 March 2016 set out on pages 39 to 78. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 

preparation is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 

102 the Financial Reporting Standard applicable to the UK and Republic of Ireland. 

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 128 of the Housing and 

Regeneration Act 2008 and Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 

we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no 

other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 

Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on page 34, the directors are responsible for 

the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to 

audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards 

on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards 

for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 

www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company as at 31 March 2016 and of its surplus for the 

year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the 

Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015. 

 

 

 

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Ocean Housing Group Limited (continued) 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 

prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, 

in our opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from 

branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

 

Victoria Sewell (Senior Statutory Auditor)      Date:  

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 

Plym House 

3 Longbridge Road  

Marsh Mills 

Plymouth 

PL6 8LT  
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Income and expenditure account and Other Comprehensive Income for the 

year ended 31 March 2016 

 Note 
Group  

Year 
ended 31 

March 
2016 

 
£’000 

Group 
Year 

ended 31 
March 

2015 
Restated 

£’000 

Company 
Year 

ended 31 
March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Company 
Year 

ended 31 
March 

2015 
Restated 

£’000 

Turnover 2 32,688 30,573 2,256 1,948 

Operating costs 2 (23,403) (22,030) (1,993) (1,825) 

Operating surplus 2 9,285 8,543 263 123 

Surplus on property disposals 3 912 187 - - 

Share in operating surplus of Joint Venture 8(c) (7) (8) - - 

Interest receivable and similar income 4 15 12 - - 

Interest payable and similar charges 5 (7,655) (7,114) (6) (4) 

Net interest payable on pension fund liabilities 5 (147) (86) (44) (22) 

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 6 2,403 1,534 213 97 

Taxation on ordinary activities 7 (55) (262) 6 (42) 

Surplus for the year 6 2,348 1,272 219 55 

Changes in pension liabilities  

 Scheme 

15 127 (798) 10 (169) 

Deferred tax asset on pension scheme deficit  (85) 65 (85) 13 

Total comprehensive surplus /(deficit) for the year   2,390 539 144 (101) 

 

All amounts above are derived from continuing activities. The above surplus is based on historic costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ocean Housing Group Limited 

40 

Statement of Changes in Equity  

 Group 

Revenue 

Reserve 

Group 
Total 

Equity 

Company 

Revenue 
Reserve 

Company 
Total 

Equity 

Balance at 1 April 2014 as previously reported 

 

17,748 17,748 (675) (675) 

Effects of adoption of FRS 102 (1,280) (1,280) (364) (364) 

Balance at 1 April 2014 (restated) 16,468 16,468 (1,039) (1,039) 

Balance at 1 April 2014 16,468 16,468 (1,039) (1,039) 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,272 1,272 55 55 

Other Comprehensive Income 

 

(733) (733) (156) (156) 

Balance at 31 March 2015 17,007 17,007 (1,140) (1,140) 

     

Balance at 1 April 2015 17,007 17,007 (1,140) (1,140) 

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 2,348 2,348 219 219 

Other Comprehensive Income 

 

42 42 (75) (75) 

Balance at 31 March 2016 19,397 19,397 (996) (996) 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2016 
 

 
Note Group  

At 31 March 
2016 

 
 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
 

Restated 

Company  
At 31 

March 2016 
 
 

Company  
At 31 

March 2015 
 

Restated 

 
 £’000 

 
£’000 

 
£’000 

 
£’000 

 
Fixed assets   

 
  

Tangible    
  

Housing properties at cost less depreciation 8a 180,118 172,348 - - 

Total housing properties 8a 180,118 172,348 - - 

Other tangible fixed assets 8b 3,446 3,233 212 248 

Investments 8c 98 106 5  - 

Total fixed assets  183,662 

 

175,687 217 248 

Current assets     
 

Stock and work in progress 9 9,394 7,875 - - 

Debtors 10 2,074 5,166 205 148 

Cash at bank and in hand  811 3,199 49 87 

Total current assets  12,279 16,240 254 235 

Current liabilities     
 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 

one year 

11 
(6,238) (6,549) (359) (315) 

Provisions for liabilities and charges - (24) 

) 

(28) (24) (30) 

Net current assets/(liabilities)  6,017 9,663 (129) (110) 

Total assets less current 

assets/(liabilities) 

 
189,679 185,350 88 138 

      
Creditors: amounts falling due after 

more than one year 

12 (166,341) (162,738) (115) (80) 

Pension liability 15 (3,941) (5,605) (969) (1,198) 

Net assets/(liabilities)  19,397 17,007 (996) (1,140) 

Represented by:      

Capital and reserves      

Reserves including pension liability 

liability 

 19,397 17,007 (996) (1,140) 

Total Capital and reserves  19,397 17,007 (996) (1,140) 
 

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 21 September 2016 and signed on its behalf by:  

 

Dennis Spilsbury 

Group Chairman 

Kevin Pearce 

Company 

Secretary 
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year to 31 March 2016 

    

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 

        

    £'000 £'000 

Cash flows from operating activities       

Profit for the year   2,390  539  

Adjustments for:       

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment   3,815  3,561  

        

Gain on Disposal of Assets   (912) 187  

Difference between pension charge and cash contributions   875  733  

Interest receivable and similar income   (15) (12)  

Interest payable and similar charges   7,655  7,114  

Deferred government grant   (465) (390)  

Taxation   110  179  

        

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other debtors    3,092  (3,536) 

Increase in stocks   (1,519) (3,978) 

Increase in trade and other creditors   7 2,813  

Decrease in provisions and employee benefits   (2,539) (653) 

        

Tax paid   (186) (71) 

        

Net cash from operating activities   12,308  6,486 

        

Cash flows from investing activities       

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets    1,738  1,340  

Interest received   15  12 

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets    (11,916) (13,692) 

Proceeds from the receipt of government grants    1,690  1,703  

Capitalised development expenditure    (365) (341)  

        

Net cash from investing activities   (8,838) (10,978) 

        

Cash flows from financing activities       

Proceeds from new loan   2,378  11,500  

Interest paid   (8,236) (7,755)  

        

Net cash from financing activities   (5,858) 3,745  

        

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents   (2,388) (747) 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 2015   3,199  3,946  

        

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2016   811  3,199  
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Notes to the financial statements for the year to 31 March 2016 

1 Accounting policies 

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in 

relation to the Company and Group’s financial statements. 

The financial statements of the Company and Group are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 – 

The applicable financial reporting standard in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) and the Statement of 

Recommended Practice: Accounting by Registered Social Housing Providers Update 2014 and comply with the 

Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2015.  

The presentation currency of these financial statements is sterling.  All amounts in the financial statements have been 

rounded to the nearest £1,000. 

An explanation of how the transition to FRS 102 has affected financial position and financial performance of the Company 

and Group is provided in note 23. 

FRS 102 grants certain first-time adoption exemptions from the full requirements of FRS 102 in the transition period.  No 

exemptions have been taken in these financial statements. 

In these financial statements, the Company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this FRS) and has 

applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:  

 Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;  

 Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and 

 Key Management Personnel compensation.  

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements.  On first time adoption of FRS 102, the Company and Group have not retrospectively changed 
its accounting under old UK GAAP for derecognition of financial assets and liabilities before the date of transition or 
accounting estimates.  

Measurement convention 

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost.  

Going concern 

The Company and Group have sufficient financial resources based on forecasts and current expectations of future sector 
conditions.  As a consequence, the Board believes that the Company and Group are well placed to manage their business 
risks successfully. The Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company and Group have adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Board therefore continues to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing these financial statements. 

Basic financial instruments 

Tenant Arrears, Trade and other debtors  

Tenant Arrears, Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.  
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment losses.  If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond 
normal business terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of 
instrument for a similar debt instrument. 
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Trade and other creditors  

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to 
initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  If the arrangement constitutes a 
financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, then it is measured at the present 
value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a similar debt instrument. 

Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial instruments 

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any 
impairment losses. 

Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities  

These are separate financial statements of the company.  Investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities are 
carried at cost less impairment.    

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. 

Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.   

Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of 
tangible fixed assets, for example land is treated separately from buildings.   

Leases in which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are 
classified as finance leases.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance 
lease are stated on initial recognition at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the 
minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, including any incremental costs directly attributable to negotiating and 
arranging the lease. At initial recognition a finance lease liability is recognised equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, 
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.  The present value of the minimum lease payments is 
calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease.  Lease payments are accounted for as described below. 

The company assesses at each reporting date whether tangible fixed assets (including those leased under a finance lease) 
are impaired.     

Housing Properties 

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.  Cost includes 
the cost of acquiring land and buildings, directly attributable development costs, interest at the average cost of borrowing 
for the development period, and expenditure incurred in respect of improvements which comprise the modernisation and 
extension of existing properties. 

Shared ownership properties are included in housing properties at cost related to the percentage of equity retained, less 
any provisions needed for impairment or depreciation.  

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each 
component part of housing properties. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
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Component 

 

Economic useful 

life 

Structure:  

Traditional flats and houses  (Pre 1945) 40 years 

PRC flats and houses (All years) 40 years 

Traditional flats and houses (1945 to 1965) 55 years 

Traditional flats and houses (1965 to 2000) 

New build houses (Post 2000) 

60 years 

100 years 

  

External wall insulation 30 years 

Roof 50 years 

Windows and doors 30 years 

Heating system 15 years 

Kitchen 20 years 

Bathroom 30 years 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed if there is an indication of a significant change since 
last annual reporting date in the pattern by which the company expects to consume an asset’s future economic benefits.  

Non component works to existing properties 

The amount of expenditure incurred which relates to an improvement, which is defined as an increase in the net rental 

stream or the life of a property, has been capitalised.  Expenditure incurred on other major repairs, cyclical and day-to-day 

repairs to housing properties is charged to the income and expenditure account in the period in which it is incurred. 

Interest capitalised 

Interest on borrowings is capitalised to housing properties during the course of construction up to the end of the month of 
completion of each scheme. The interest capitalised is either on borrowings specifically taken to finance a scheme or on 
net borrowings to the extent that they are deemed to be financing a scheme. This treatment applies irrespective of the 
original purpose for which the loan was raised. For the period ending 31 March 2016, interest has been capitalised at an 
average rate of 5.8% (2015: 5.8%) that reflects the weighted average effective interest rate on the Group’s borrowings 
required to finance housing property developments. 

Other fixed assets 

Other tangible assets include those assets with an individual value in excess of £1,000.  

Depreciation is provided evenly on the cost of other tangible fixed assets to write them down to their estimated residual 

values over their expected useful lives.  No depreciation is provided on freehold land.  The principal annual rates used for 

other assets are: 

Freehold operating accommodation 60 years 

Vehicles 5 years 

Office furniture, equipment and telephones 10 years 

Computer hardware 3 years 

 Furnished tenancy scheme 5 years 

Computer software 5 years 

Social Housing Grant  

Social housing grant (SHG) is initially recognised at fair value as a long term liability, specifically as deferred grant income 
and released through the income and expenditure as turnover income over the life of the structure of housing properties in 
accordance with the accrual method applicable to social landlords accounting for housing properties at cost.   

On disposal of properties, all associated SHG are transferred to either the Recycled capital grant fund (RCGF) until the 
grant is recycled or repaid to reflect the existing obligation under the social housing grant funding regime. 
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Properties held for sale and work in progress 

Completed properties and properties under construction for open market sales are recognised at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct development overheads. Interest incurred is also 
capitalised during the course of obtaining planning and throughout the work in progress up to the point of practical 
completion of the development scheme.  Assessing net realisable value requires use of estimation techniques. In making 
this assessment, management considers publicly available information and internal forecasts on future sales activity. Net 
realisable value is based on estimated sales price after allowing for all further costs of completion and disposal.  

Impairment excluding stocks and deferred tax assets 

Financial assets (including trade and other debtors) 

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event 
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its 
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective 
interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment an impairment is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset if it were to 
be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the 
discount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment 
loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. 

Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its 
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are 
grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).  

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to 
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other 
assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.  

Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans and other long term employee benefits 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the company pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to 
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account in the periods during which 
services are rendered by employees. 

Defined benefit plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net 
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have 
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. 
The fair value of any plan assets is deducted.  The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate as determined at the beginning of the annual 
period to the net defined benefit liability (asset) taking account of changes arising as a result of contributions and benefit 
payments 

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds denominated in the currency of, and 
having maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Company’s obligations.  A valuation is performed annually by a 
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.  The Company recognises net defined benefit plan assets to the 
extent that it is able to recover the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the 
plan. 
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Changes in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service rendered during the period, net interest on net 
defined benefit liability, and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements during the period 
are recognised in profit or loss. 

Re measurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

The Group participates in two defined benefit plans as set out below: 

 Cornwall Pension Fund 

 Social Housing Pension Scheme 

 
The Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) provides benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assets of the scheme 
are held separately from those of the Group. The Group is unable to obtain sufficient information to use defined benefit 
accounting for this multi-employer plan, and accounts for the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. As a 
result, the amount charged to the income and expenditure account represents the contributions payable to the scheme in 
respect of the accounting period. To the extent that payments plans relate to funding a deficit, the contributions are 
recognised as a liability payable arising from the agreement with the multi-employer plan and results in a charge to the 
income and expenditure account. Where these payments are not expected to be settled within 12 months the liability is 
measured at the present value of the contributions payable. 

Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the 
reporting date. 

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its 
group, the company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the 
company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee. 

Turnover 

Turnover represents rental and service charge income receivable (net of void losses), fees receivable, proceeds from first 
tranche sales of low-cost home ownership and from properties developed for open market sales, and amortisation of 
Social Housing Grant (SHG) under the accrual model. Rental income is recognised on the execution of tenancy 
agreements. Proceeds on sales are recognised on practical completions. Other income is recognised as receivable on the 
delivery of services provided. 

Expenses 

Cost of sales 

Cost of sales represents the costs including capitalised interest and direct overheads incurred in the development of the 
properties, and marketing, and other incidental costs incurred in the sale of the properties. 

Operating lease  

Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) made under operating leases are recognised in the profit and loss 
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in 
line with expected general inflation;  in which case the payments related to the structured increases are recognised as 
incurred. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit and loss over the term of the lease as an integral part of the 
total lease expense.  

Finance lease 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability using 
the rate implicit in the lease. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a 
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred.   
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Interest receivable and Interest payable  

Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable, finance charges on shares classified as liabilities and finance 
leases recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net 
foreign exchange losses that are recognised in the profit and loss account (see foreign currency accounting policy).  

 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of Housing Properties that take a 
substantial time to be prepared for use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.  

Other interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds invested.  

Interest income and interest payable are recognised in profit or loss as they accrues, using the effective interest method.  

Taxation 

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss account 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is 
recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.  

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in 
periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The following timing differences are not 
provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all 
conditions for retaining the tax allowances have been met; and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint 
ventures to the extent that it is not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the reporting entity is able to 
control the reversal of the timing difference.  Deferred tax is not recognised on permanent differences arising because certain 
types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are 
greater or smaller than the corresponding income or expense.   

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that they will be 
recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.  

Provisions 

Provisions are only recognised where the Company has an obligation to incur expenditure. 

Bad and doubtful debts 

Provision is made against rent arrears of current and former tenants as well as sundry debts to the extent that they are 

considered irrecoverable.  Current tenant debts are not written off, however a prudent provision is made to allow for all 

potential bad debts.  The formula adopted is as follows: 

Rents  

Current tenant arrears less than 4 weeks 0% 

Current tenant arrears between 4 and 15 weeks 10% 

Current tenant arrears between 16 and 32 weeks 25% 

Current tenant arrears greater than 33 weeks 50% 

Former tenant arrears 90% 

  

Debtors  

Court costs 50% 

Service and tenant charge arrears (Former tenants) 90% 

Service and tenant charge arrears greater than 4 months 50% 

Service and tenant charge arrears between 2 and 4 months 10% 

Service and tenant charge arrears less than 2 months 0% 

Other sundry debtor arrears 0% 

  

 



Ocean Housing Group Limited 

49 

 

2 Turnover, operating costs and operating surplus 

 

(a) Particulars of turnover, operating costs and 

operating surplus  

Company 

Turnover 
Year ended  

31 March  
2016 

 
£’000 

Costs 
Year ended  

31 March  
2016 

 
£’000 

Surplus 
Year ended  

31 March  
2016 

 
£’000 

Surplus 
Year ended  

31 March  
2015 

 
£’000 

Other activities 2,256 (1,993) 263 123 

Total 2,256 (1,993) 263 123 

     

Group 

 

 

    

Social housing lettings 19,671 (12,912) 6,759 7,258 

Shared ownership first tranche sales 3,041 (2,520) 521 310 

Other activities 9,976 (7,971) 2,005 975 

Total 32,688 (23,403) 9,285 

 

8,543 
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Turnover, Operating Costs and Operation Surplus (continued) 
 

(b) Income and expenditure from social housing 

lettings 

Group 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

 
£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

 
£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

 
£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

 
£’000 

 Income from lettings  General 
housing 

Shared 
ownership 

Total Total 

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges 17,675 736 18,411 17,778 

Service income 723 72 795 724 

Grant amortisation 429 36 465 390 

Turnover from social housing lettings 18,827 844 19,671 18,892 

Expenditure on lettings     

Management (4,870) (256) (5,126) (3,786) 

Services (642) (48) (690) (613) 

Routine maintenance (1,854) (140) (1,994) (2,303) 

Planned maintenance (903) (68) (971) (1,248) 

Major repairs expenditure (273) (21) (294) (240) 

Bad debts (213) (16) (229) (141) 

Depreciation of housing properties 

 

(3,355) (253) (3,608) (3,303) 

Operating costs on social housing properties (12,110) (802) (12,912) (11,634) 

Operating surplus on social housing lettings 6,717 42 6,759 7,258 

     
Void losses 149 - 149 120 
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3 Property and land disposals 

 
Group  

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 

Proceeds of sales 
1,875 1.338 

- - 

Depreciation charged on properties sold 
69 72 

- - 

Book value of properties sold 
(806) (947) 

- - 

Cost of sales 
(14) (13) 

- - 

Refund due to Cornwall Council 
(212) (263) 

- - 

Surplus on property disposals 
912 187 

- - 

 

During the year the Group sold 4 (2015: 5) homes under Right to Buy legislation. There were 4 occurrences of the  

staircasing of shared ownership properties, 2 units to 100%  (2015: 2) and 8 general disposals (2015: 4).  1 shared 

ownership property (2015: 3) was repossessed. 2 Parcels of land were sold to group companies (2015: 0).   

4 Interest receivable and similar income 

 
Group  

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

 
£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

 
£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

 
£’000 

Interest receivable from cash deposits and investments 15 12 - - 

Total 15 12 - - 
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5 Interest payable and similar charges 

 
Group  

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 

Interest payable on loans 7,567 7,222 6 4 

Lenders fees paid 405 308 

 

- - 

Total interest payable and similar charges 7,972 7,530 6 4 

Less interest capitalised in respect of development schemes  (317) (416) - - 

Interest payable and similar charges 7,655 7,114 6 4 

Net interest payable on pension fund liabilities 147 86 44 22 

Total 7,802 7,200 50 26 

 

The average interest rate used for calculating the capitalised interest in respect of development schemes for the year was 

5.80% (2015: 5.80%) 

 

 

 

6 Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 

 

The Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation is stated 

after charging / (crediting): 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 
 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 

Depreciation on dwellings 3,608 3,303 - - 

Depreciation on other tangible fixed assets 231 258 54 68 

Increase / (Reduction) in provision for bad debts 98 (39) - - 

External auditor’s remuneration in their capacity as auditor 32 40 6 6 

External auditor’s remuneration in respect of other services 10 13 2 

 

2 

Internal auditor’s remuneration 28 28 28 28 

Property lease rentals 26 26 - - 

Operating lease rentals (Plant and machinery) 159 190 - 50 

Operating lease rentals (Other assets) 157 220 20 - 

Abortive development costs 59 196 - - 
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7 Taxation 

 

 

 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Group  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 
 
 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Company  
Year ended 

31 March 
2015 

£’000 

UK corporation tax charge / (credit)     

Current tax on income for the year 151 204 - - 

Current tax on income for prior year (89) - - - 

Total Current Tax 62 204  - 

Deferred taxation (7) 28 (6) 33 

Deferred taxation on pension - 30 - 9 

Tax charge on ordinary activities 55 262 (6) 42 
 

 

Factors affecting the tax charge for the current year 

The current tax charge for the year for the Company is lower (2015: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the 

UK of 20% (2015 21%). The reconciliation between current taxation and deferred taxation is below: 

 

Current tax reconciliation 

 

 
 

  

Surplus for the year 2,348 1,272 219 55 

Total tax expense 55 262 (6) 42 

Surplus excluding tax 2,403 1,534 213 97 

Current tax at Group: 20.0% (2015: 21.0%); Company 20% (2015: 

21.0%) 

481 322 42 20 

Capital allowances for the year in excess of depreciation - (26) - (31) 

Adjustment for intra-group trading 220 70 - - 

Losses eliminated 95 - - - 

Non taxable income (194) (75) - - 

Group relief (10) (4) (5) 43 

Losses carried back 76 - - - 

Adjustments relating to prior periods (90) - - - 

Marginal relief - - - - 

Pension provision (510) (33) (30) - 

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (7) - (7) - 

Short term timing differences (6) 8 (6) 10  

Total tax charged to the income and expenditure account 55 262 (6) 42 
 

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% (effective from 1 April 2014) and 20% (effective from 1 April 

2015) were substantively enacted on 2 July 2013. Further reductions to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and to 18% 

(effective 1 April 2020) were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015. This will reduce the Company’s future tax charge 

accordingly. The deferred tax liability at 31 March 2016 has been calculated based on the rate of 18% substantively 

enacted at the balance sheet date. 
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8 Tangible fixed assets 
 

(a) Housing properties  

Group 

Housing 
property 
held for  

letting 
 

£’000 

Housing 
property 

under 
construction 

 
£’000 

Leasehold 
shared 

ownership 
 
 

£’000 

Leasehold 
shared 

ownership 
under 

construction 
£’000 

 
Total 

Housing 
property 

 
£’000 

Cost       

Brought forward at 1 April 2015 163,928 4,733 25,947 1,586 196,194 

Completions 1,651 (1,651) 1,157 (1,157) - 

Additions 3,501 4,560 - 2,264 10,325 

Component  additions 1,792 - - - 1,792 

Disposals (494) - (314) - (808) 

At 31 March 2016 170,378 7,642 26,790 2,693 207,503 

Depreciation      

Brought forward at 1 April 2015 (23,202) (69) (575) - (23,846) 

Charge for the year (3,513) - (95) - (3,608) 

Written out through property disposals 59 - 10 - 69 

At 31 March 2016 (26,656) (69) (660) - (27,385) 

Net book value at 1 April 2015 140,726 4,664 25,372 1,586 172,348 

Net book value at 31 March 2016 143,722 7,573 26,130 2,693 180,118 

 
In the year revenue expenditure on existing properties was £2,978,000 (2015: £3,839,000) and capital expenditure was 

£1,972,000 (2015: £2,672,000) of which £1,222,000 (2015: £1,407,000) related to kitchen, bathroom or heating system 

replacements. 

Additions to housing properties include capitalised interest of £317,000 (2015: £415,000) for the year (cumulative total of 

£2,023,000). 

The Total value of Grant received as at 31 March 2016 was £45,222,000 (2015: £43,043,000); £41,617,000 is held in 

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (2015: £40,932,000), £3,116,000 in Reserves including pension 

liability (2015: £1,721,000) and £489,000 in Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (2015: £390,000). 
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8 Tangible fixed assets (continued) 

Recycled Capital Grant 

 

At 31 March 2016 

£’000 

 At 31 March 2015 

£’000 

Balance as at 1 April 2015 87  10 

Inputs to the fund:    

Grants recycled 65  94 

Interest accrued 1  - 

Recycling of grant:    

Purchase of repossessed homebuy dwellings -  (17) 

Balance as at 31 March 2016 153  87 

 

 

The number of rented properties in management at 31 March 2016 was 3,965 (2015: 3,917). 3,681 (2015: 3,706) carried a 

fixed charge at 31 March 2016. Of these properties, 3,251 (2015: 3,317) are valued using EUV-SH, 430 (2015: 101) using 

MV-STT.  

The number of shared ownership properties at 31 March 2016 was 331 (2015: 287).  217 (2015: 101) of these dwellings are 

in charge as at 31 March 2016.  

The latest full valuation of Oceans housing properties was professionally undertaken on 31 March 2015 by Savills (L&P) Ltd 

whose operatives are members of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. That valuation provided a total securitised 

value of £199,453,000.  

The EUV.SH is on the basis of a value with a mortgage in possession. The valuation is based on discounting the cash flow 

from rental less management maintenance and repair expenditure to their present value using a discount rate of 5.75%. 
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8 Tangible fixed assets (continued) 

 (b) Other assets  

Company 

IT 
 
 

£’000 

Office 
furniture/ 

telephones 
£’000 

Assets under 
construction 

 
£’000 

Total 
 
 

£’000 

Cost  
    

As at 1 April 2015 347 189 93 629 

Additions 108 - (93) 15 

At 31 March 2016 455 189 - 644 

Depreciation 
    

As at 1 April 2015 (299) (82) - (381) 

Charge for the year (31) (20) - (51) 

At 31 March 2016 (330) (102) - (432) 

Net book value at 31 March 2015 48 107 93 248 

Net book value at 31 March 2016 125 87 - 212 

     

 

 

(b) Other assets - continued  

Group 

Operating    
 premises 

 
£’000 

Plant and 
equipment 

 
£’000 

Vehicles 
 
 

£’000 

IT 
 
 

£’000 

Office 
furniture/ 

telephones 
£’000 

Total 
 
 

£’000 

Cost       

As at 1 April 2015 3,189 75 66 1,667 339 5,336 

Additions  - - - 443 1 444 

At 31 March 2016 3,189 75 66 2,110 340 5,780 

Depreciation       

As at 1 April 2015 (447) (56) (39) (1,374) (187) (2,103) 

Charge for the year (49) (19) (9) (116) (38) (231) 

At 31 March 2015 (496) (75) (48) (1,490) (225) (2,334) 

Net book value at 31 March 2015 2,742 19 27 293 152 3,233 

Net book value at 31 March 2016 2,693 - 18 620 115 3,446 
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8 Tangible fixed assets (continued) 

 

(c) Investments 
Group  

At 31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Share in Joint Venture reserves 98 106 - - 

Share in Joint Venture - - 5 - 

Total 98 106 5 - 
 

 

Ocean Housing Group Limited is one of the four partners in Advantage Southwest LLP (ASW) which was set up in May 

2004 as a consortium to obtain value for money in procurement. The registered office of Advantage Southwest LLP is The 

Mount, Paris Street, Exeter, EX1 2JZ. The investment represents a 25% share of Advantage South West LLP by Ocean 

Housing Group Limited, which acquired the shares from Ocean Services (SW) Limited in September 2015. 

 

In accordance with FRS9 Accounting for Associates and Joint Ventures, the Group is required to disclose its share of assets 

and liabilities in ASW.  As at the year end these were as follows: 

   2016 2015 

   £’000 £’000 

Share of fixed assets - - 

Share of current assets 104 113 

Share of current liabilities (6) (7) 

Share of long-term liabilities - - 

   98 106 

     

Share of income     

     

Share of profit/(loss) before tax (7) (8) 

Share of tax payable - - 

Share of profit/(loss) after tax (7) (8) 
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9 Stock and work in progress 

 
Group  

At 31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Completed properties available for sale 1,870 1,704 - - 

Properties in construction 1,885 1,595 - - 

Building materials store 1 1 - - 

Van stocks 19 28 - - 

Work in progress 5,619 4,547 - - 

Total 9,394 7,875 - - 
 
Housing property stocks relate to acquisition and development expenditure on first tranche of unsold shared ownership 
properties. 

 
10 Debtors 

 

Amounts falling due within one year: 

Group  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Rent and service charge arrears 1,187 1,126 - - 

Less provision for bad debts (453) (355) - - 

Net rent and service charge arrears 734 771 - - 

Amounts recoverable on contracts 105 113 - - 

Trade debtors 513 1,345 - 2 

Prepayments and accrued income 248 248 165 53 

Amounts owed by Group companies - - 33 89 

Corporation tax recoverable 90 - - - 

V.A.T. - 1 - - 

Other debtors 382 2,686 7 4 

 2,072 5,164 205 148 

Amounts falling due after one year:     

Employee car loans 2 2 - - 

Total 2,074 5,166 205 148 
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11 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

  
Group  

At 31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Trade creditors 2,117 2,006 117 149 

Rent and service charge prepayments 145 148 - - 

Other creditors including tax and social security:     

    Corporation tax 115 235 - - 

    Taxation and social security 279 383 76 32 

    Interest  27 273 - - 

    RTB Creditor 212 264 - - 

     SHPS Pension 284 227 65 53 

    Other creditors 64 37 

 

45 34 

    Grant Creditor 489 390 - - 

Accruals and deferred income 2,506 2,586 56 47 

 Total 6,238 6,549 359 315 
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12 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 

Housing Finance 

In September 2014, Ocean Housing Limited entered into a Note Purchase Agreement with M&G Investments which will see 
the Company receive £50 million in new financing by March 2017.  £20 million was issued in the 2014/15 financial year and 
is included within the information set out below.   The remaining £30 million will be received in March 2017. 

As at 31 March 2016 there were facilities in place of £180 million (2015: £180 million) and £125 million (2015: £123 million) 

was drawn from these facilities.  

Debt outstanding  
Group  

At 31 March 
2016 

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Housing loans outstanding (a) 125,000 123,000 115 80 

Deferred financing costs (652) (654) - - 

Grant Creditor 41,617 40,392 - - 

Development bank loan 376 - - - 

Total 166,341 162,738 115 80 

 

(a) Maturity of debt  
 

Repayable in greater than one year but less than five years 15,000 3,000 

 Repayable In more than five years 110,000 120,000 

Total 125,000 123,000 
 

Interest rate profile 
  

Floating rate 15,000 3,000 

Fixed rate 110,000 120,000 

Total 125,000 123,000 
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12 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued) 

 

The Company has undrawn committed borrowing facilities at 31 March 2016 of £27.5 million (2015: £27.0 million) and is 

contractually committed to borrow a further £30.0 million fixed interest loan from 31 March 2017 increasing the total 

available facility to £180.0 million. The weighted average fixed interest rate as at 31 March 2016 was 6.26% (2015: 6.30%) 

and floating rate was 2.43% (2015: 2.72%).  Combined the average interest rate for the year was 5.80% (2015: 6.09%). At 

31 March 2016 the maturity profile for borrowings was: 

£35 million 

£10 million  

£10 million 

£10 million 

£15 million 

£10 million 

£20 million 

19  years to 31 March 2035 

14 years to 31 March 2030 

5 years to 31 March 2021 

3 years to 31 March 2019 

2 years to 31 March 2018 

1 year to 31 March 2017 

Repayable in equal, annual instalments between April 2025 and April 2054 

 

 

 

Deferred Financing Costs 

 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
 

       £’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 
 

       £’000 

Brought forward at 1 April 655 215 

Arrangement fees paid during the year - 450 

Charged to the Income & Expenditure account (3) (10) 

Carried forward at 31 March 652 655 
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13 Employee information 

 Group 

(a) Number of employees: 

 

Year ended 
 31 March 2016 

No. 
 

 Year ended  
31 March 2015 

No. 

Office staff 130 142 

Maintenance staff 111 110 

Support officers, caretakers and cleaners 1 1 

Average total full-time and part-time employees employed during the 
year 

242 253 

Average number of full-time equivalents employed during the year 236 241 

   

Group 

(b)  Staff costs for the above employees 

 
 

Year ended  
31 March 2016 

 £’000 

  
 

Year ended 31 
March 2015 

 £’000 

Wages and salaries 7,298 7,368 

Social security costs 636 665 

Pension costs (see note 15) 1,381 1,060 

Total 9,315 9,093 

 

Group 

 

(c) Salary bandings for employees earning over £60,000 

 

£’000 2016 number 2015 number 

60-70 2 2 

90-100 1 1 

100-110 2 2 

160-170 1 1 

170-190 1 1 
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14 Directors’ emoluments 

Directors are defined as Members of the Board and Executive Officers who sit on Executive Group. The remuneration paid 

to Board Members and Executive Officers of the Company and Group during the year was as follows: 

(a) Aggregate payments made to Executive Officers and Directors 

 

 

  
Year ended 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

 
Year ended 31 

March 2015 
£’000 

Emoluments - Board Members 94 77 

Emoluments - Executive Officers 628 626 

Social security - Executive Officers 71 75 

Pensions - Executive Officers 68 69 

Total 861 847 

 

Board members receive £3,000 per annum plus an additional £2,500 per additional board they sit on.  The Group Chair 

receives £16,557 per annum and the Deputy Chair receives £10,417.  The two subsidiary company Chairs and the Group 

Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee Chair each receive £7,500 per annum. 

   

(b)  Group Chief Executive and other specific disclosures 
 

Year ended 31 March 
2016 

£’000 

 
Year ended 31 

March 2015 
£’000 

Emoluments to the Group Chief Executive, highest paid Director, 
(excluding pension) 

187 181 

 

The Group Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Cornwall County Council local government pension scheme. No 

enhancement or special terms apply and he has no individual pension arrangement to which the Company makes a 

contribution.  The pension scheme is a final salary scheme funded by contributions from the employer and employee. 

£45,071 (2015: £42,311) was paid by the Group as an employer’s contribution for the Group Chief Executive.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ocean Housing Group Limited 

64 

 

15 Pensions 
 

The Company is a member of two pension schemes providing benefits based on final pensionable pay.  

 

Details of the two schemes are as follows: 

 

 (1) Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS): DB Pension Scheme 

Ocean Housing Group Limited and Ocean Housing Limited participate in the Social Housing Pension Scheme (the 

Scheme). The Scheme is funded and is contracted-out of the State Pension scheme. 

The employer contributions in the year were £243,224 (2015: £121,224). There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions 

at either the beginning or end of the financial year. 

The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force on 30 December 

2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the 

Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK. 

The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the company is potentially liable for other 

participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of the scheme deficit following 

withdrawal from the scheme. Participating employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an 

annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme. 

A full actuarial valuation for the scheme was carried out with an effective date of 30 September 2014. This actuarial 

valuation was certified on 23 November 2015 and showed assets of £3,123m, liabilities of £4,446m and a deficit of £1,323m. 

To eliminate this funding shortfall, the trustees and the participating employers have agreed that additional contributions will 

be paid, in combination from all employers, to the scheme up to 30 September 2016. Ocean Housing will make deficit 

contributions of £219,000 in 2016/17: 

Where the scheme is in deficit and where the company has agreed to a deficit funding arrangement, the company 

recognises a liability for this obligation. The amount recognised is the net present value of the deficit reduction contributions 

payable under the agreement that relates to the deficit. The present value is calculated using the discount rate detailed in 

these disclosures. The unwinding of the discount rate is recognised as a finance cost. 
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15    Pensions (continued) 
 

 
Present values of provision for the period 31 March 2016 
 

 
 
 
Reconciliation of opening and closing provisions 

 
Group 

31 March 2016 
(£000) 

Group 
31 March 2015 

(£000) 

Company 
31 March 2016 

(£000) 

Company 
31 March 2015 

(£000) 

Provision at start of period 1,782 1,967 412 455 

Unwinding of the discount factor (interest expense) 45 47 10 11 

Deficit contribution paid (227) (218) (53) (51) 

Remeasurements - impact of any change in 
assumptions 

17 (14) 4 (3) 

Remeasurements - amendments to the contribution 
schedule 

509 - 108 - 

Provision at end of period 2,126 1,782 481 412 
 

 
 
Income and Expenditure impact 
 

 
Group 

31 March 2016 
(£000) 

Group 
31 March 2015 

(£000) 

Company 
31 March 2016 

(£000) 

Company 
31 March 2015 

(£000) 

Interest expense 45 47 10 11 

Remeasurements – impact of any change in 
assumptions 

17 (14) 4 (3) 

Remeasurements – amendments to the 
contribution schedule 

509 - - - 

 
 
 
 

 

Assumptions 
 

 
31 March 2016 
% per annum 

31 March 2015 
% per annum 

31 March 2014 
% per annum 

Rate of discount (Group and Company) 2.50 2.70 2.50 

 

The discount rates shown above are the equivalent single discount rates which, when used to discount the future recovery 
plan contributions due, would give the same results as using a full AA corporate bond yield curve to discount the same 
recovery plan contributions. 
 

 

 
31 March 2016 

(£’000) 
31 March 2015 

(£’000) 
31 March 2014 

(£’000) 

Present value of provision - Group 
2,126 1,782 1,967 

Present value of provision - Company 
481 412 455 



Ocean Housing Group Limited 

66 

 

 

15      Pensions (continued) 

 (2) Cornwall Pension Fund (CPF) 

Ocean Housing Limited and Ocean Housing Group Limited had members of the Local Government Pension Scheme.  

During the year £734,074 was paid to CPF in respect of 4 employees (2015: £591,333 for 10 employees).  There were £nil 

outstanding contributions at 31 March 2016 (2015: £nil). The pension deficit that related to Ocean Services (SW) Limited 

was paid in full. 

 

With effect from 1 April 2016 the employer contribution rates Ocean Housing, 25.9% of pensionable salary and £550,000, 

Ocean Housing Group 25.9% % of pensionable salary and £300,000. Employee contributions will range between 5.5% and 

8.5%. 

 

The most recent valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2013, and has been updated by independent actuaries to the 

Cornwall Pension Fund in order to assess the liabilities of the fund as at 31 March 2015.  Liabilities are valued on an 

actuarial basis using the projected unit method which assesses the future liabilities discounted to their present value. The 

scheme is closed to new entrants and by using the projected unit method current service cost will increase as members of 

the scheme approach retirement: 

Group disclosures 

 

a) Main actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of FRS 102 

At 31 March 
2016 

% 

At 31 March  
2015 

% 

At 31 March  
2014 

% 

Discount rate 3.1 3.1 4.1 

Rate of increase in salaries 4.0 4.0 4.4 

Rate of increase in pensions 2.1 2.1 2.6 

Rate of inflation 2.1 2.1 2.6 

 

 

b) Scheme assets and expected returns 

 

 

At 31 
March 2016 

 At 31 March  
2015 

 

 At 31 March  
2014 

 % £’000 %  £’000 %  £’000 

Equities  3.1 2,026 3.1 4,040 6.5 5,301 

Bonds 3.1 1,982 3.1 4,220 3.8 2,319 

Property 3.1 308 3.1 539 4.8 496 

Cash 3.1 88 3.1 179 3.7 165 

Total value of assets and returns 3.0 4,404 5.6 8,978 5.6 8,281 

 

Assets are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments.  The proportions of total assets held in each asset 

type, shown above, reflect the proportions held by the Fund as a whole as at 31 March 2016. 
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15      Pensions (continued) 

 
 

c) The following amounts were measured in accordance with the 

requirements of FRS102 

At 31 March 
2016 

 
£’000 

At 31 March 
2015 

 
£’000 

At 31 March 
2014 

 
£’000 

Share of assets in Cornwall County Council Superannuation Fund 4,404 8,978 8,281 

Estimated liabilities in Cornwall County Council Superannuation Fund (6,730) (13,754) (12,713) 

Deferred tax asset on Pension scheme deficit (note 16) 227 565 500 

Ocean’s deficit in the scheme (2,099) (4,211) (3,932) 

 

 

 

d) Analysis of amount charged to operating 

profit in the year  

 Year ended  

31 March  

2016 

 Year ended 
31 March 

2015 

 Year ended 
31 March 

2014 

  £’000  £’000  £’000 

Operating surplus       

Current service cost  (74)  (109)  (113) 

Past service cost  -  (12)  - 

Total operating (charge) / credit  (74)  (121)  (113) 

Other finance income       

Expected return on employer assets  132  452  373 

Interest on pension scheme liabilities  (217)  (529)  (507) 

Net return  (85)  (77)  (134) 

Net revenue account gain  (159)  (198)  (247) 

 

 

e) Analysis of amount recognised in statement of other 

comprehensive expenditure (SOCE) 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
 

£’000 

Experience gains on assets 75 139 428 

Experience gains on liabilities 10 40 66 

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme 

liabilities 

42 (977) (1,115) 

Actuarial gain / (loss) in pension plan 127 (798) (621) 
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15     Pensions (continued) 

f) Movement in deficit during the year 

 

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation Year Ended  
31 Mar 2016 

Year Ended  
31 Mar 2015 

 £000 £000 
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 13,754 12,713 
Current Service Cost 74 109 
Interest Cost 217 513 
Contributions by Members 24 32 
Past Service Costs - 12 
Actuarial (Gains) / losses  (374) 938 
Transferred to the Income Statement (6,619) - 
Estimated Benefits Paid (346) (563) 

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 6,730 13,754 

 
 
 

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets Year Ended  
31 Mar 2016 

Year Ended  
31 Mar 2015 

 £000 £000 
Opening Fair Value of Employer Assets 8,978 8,281 
Expected Return on Assets 14 468 
Contributions by Members 24 32 
Contributions by the Employer 809 621 
Actuarial (Gains) / losses (129) 139 
Transferred to the Income Statement (4,946) - 
Benefits Paid (346) (563) 

Closing Fair Value of Employer Assets 4,404 8,978 

 

Deficit at the end of the year Year Ended 
31 Mar 2016 

Year Ended 
31 Mar 2015 

 £000 £000 
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation (6,730) (13,754) 
Closing Fair Value of Employer Assets 4,404 8,978 

Deficit in scheme at the end of the year (2,326) (4,776) 
Deferred tax asset on Pension scheme deficit (note 16) 227 565 

Deficit in scheme after provision for deferred tax asset (2,099) (4,211) 
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15     Pensions (continued) 

 

 

g) History of experience gains and losses 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2012 
 

£’000 

Experience gains and (losses) 74 139 428 562 (312) 

Value of assets 4,404 8,978 8,281 7,424 6,762 

Percentage of assets 1.7% 1.5% 5.2% 7.6% (4.6%) 

Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities 10 40 (209) 16 (121) 

Present value of liabilities 6,730 13,754 12,713 11,386 10,439 

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 0.1% 0.3% (1.6%) 0.1% (1.2%) 

Actuarial (loss) / gain recognised in SOCE (127) (799) (621) (437) (1,009) 

Present value of liabilities 6,730 13,754 12,713 11,386 10,439 

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 1.9% (5.8%) (4.9%) (3.8%) (9.7%) 

 

 
Company disclosures 
 
 

a) Main actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of FRS 102 

At 31 March 
2016 

% 

At 31 March  
2015 

% 

At 31 March  
2014 

% 

Discount rate 3.4 3.1 4.1 

Rate of increase in salaries 4.1 4.0 4.4 

Rate of increase in pensions 2.1 2.1 2.6 

Rate of inflation 2.1 2.1 2.6 

 

 

b) Scheme assets and expected returns 

 

 

At 31 March 
2016 

 At 31 March  
2015 

 

 At 31 March  
2014 

 % £’000 %  £’000 %  £’000 

Equities  3.1 1,082 3.1 926 6.5 1134 

Bonds 3.1 1,058 3.1 968 3.8 496 

Property 3.1 165 3.1 124 4.8 106 

Cash 3.1 47 3.1 41 3.7 35 

Total value of assets and returns 3.1 2,352 3.1 2,059 5.5 1,771 

 

Assets are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments.  The proportions of total assets held in each asset 

type, shown above, reflect the proportions held by the Fund as a whole as at 31 March 2016. 

 
 

c) The following amounts were measured in accordance with the 

requirements of FRS 102 

At 31 March 
2016 

 
£’000 

At 31 March 
2015 

 
£’000 

At 31 March 
2014 

 
£’000 

Share of assets in Cornwall County Council Superannuation Fund 2,352 2,059 1,771 

Estimated liabilities in Cornwall County Council Superannuation Fund (3,132) (3,210) (2,859) 

Deferred tax asset on Pension scheme deficit (note 16) 227 230 217 

Ocean’s deficit in the scheme (553) (921) (871) 
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15     Pensions (continued) 

 

d) Analysis of amount charged to operating 

profit in the year  

 Year ended 

31 March  

2016 

 Year ended 

31 March 

2015 

 Year ended 

31 March 

2014 

  £’000  £’000  £’000 

Operating surplus       

Current service cost  (54)  (47)  (46) 

Past service gain   -  -  - 

Total operating (charge) / credit  (54)  (47)  (46) 

       

Other finance income       

Expected return on employer assets  69  104  69 

Interest on pension scheme liabilities  (99)  (118)  (101) 

Net return  (30)  (14)  (32) 

Net revenue account (cost)   (84)  (61)  (78) 

 

 

 

e) Analysis of amount recognised in statement of other 

comprehensive expenditure (SOCE) 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
 

£’000 

Experience gains / (losses) on assets 139 31 277 

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme 

liabilities 
(129) (200) (498) 

Actuarial gain/(loss) in pension plan 10 (169) (221) 

 

 

f) Movement in deficit during the year  

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation Year Ended  
31 Mar 2016 

Year Ended  
31 Mar 2015 

 £000 £000 
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 3,210 2,859 
Current Service Cost 54 47 
Interest Cost 99 118 
Contributions by Members 20 19 
Actuarial Losses / (gains) (139) 200 
Estimated Benefits Paid (112) (33) 

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 3,132 3,210 
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15     Pensions (continued) 

Reconciliation of fair value of employer assets Year Ended  
31 Mar 2016 

Year Ended  
31 Mar 2015 

 £000 £000 
Opening Fair Value of Employer Assets 2,059 1,771 
Expected Return on Assets 69 104 
Contributions by Members 20 19 
Contributions by the Employer 445 167 
Actuarial Losses / (Gains) (129) 31 
Benefits Paid (112) (33) 

Closing Fair Value of Employer Assets 2,352 2,059 

 

Deficit at the end of the year Year Ended 
31 Mar 2015 

Year Ended 
31 Mar 2014 

 £000 £000 
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation (3,132) (3,210) 
Closing Fair Value of Employer Assets 2,352 2,059 

Deficit in scheme at the end of the year (780) (1,151) 
Deferred tax asset on Pension scheme deficit (note 16) 227 230 

Deficit in scheme after provision for deferred tax asset (553) (921) 

 

 

g) History of experience gains and losses 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2014 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2013 
 

£’000 

Year ended 
31 March 

2012 
 

£’000 
Experience gains and (losses) on assets 129 31 277 107 (63) 

Value of assets 2,352 2,059 1,771 1,324 1,385 

Percentage of assets (5.5%) 1.5% 15.6% 8.1% (4.55%) 

Experience gains and (losses) on liabilities 12 8 (282) 2 (13) 

Present value of liabilities 3,132 3,210 2,859 2,240 2,283 

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 0.4% 0.2% (9.9%) 0.1% (0.6%) 

Actuarial (loss) / gain recognised in OCI 10 (169) (221) (52) (176) 

Present value of liabilities 3,132 3,210 2,859 2,240 2,283 

Percentage of the present value of liabilities 0.3% (5.3%) (7.3%) (2.3%) (7.7%) 

 
 
Summary of Pension Provisions   

 

 Year Ended 
31 Mar 2016 

Year Ended 
31 Mar 2015 

 £000 £000 
LGPS Provision 2,099 4,211 
SHPS Net Provision 1,842 1,394 

Total Pension Provision 3,941 5,605 

   
SHPS net provision (per statement of financial position) 1,842 1,394 
SHPS Creditors: due within one year (note 11) 284 227 
Deferred taxation of SHPS (note 16) - 161 

SHPS Gross liability (per note 15a) 2,126 1,782 
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16 Deferred taxation  

 

Deferred taxation provided for: 

Group 
At 31 March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Group 
At 31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

Company 
At 31 March 

2016 
 

£’000 

Company 
At 31 March 

2015 
 

£’000 

At beginning of year 

 

 

(22) (22) (30) 3 

Debited / (credited) to income and expenditure account 1 

 

- 6 (33) 

At end of year 

 

 

(21) (22) (24) (30) 

Difference between accumulated depreciation and 

capital allowances 

(20) (22) (24) (30) 

Short term timing differences (1) - - - 

Deferred tax (liability) (21) (22) (24) (30) 

     

Deferred tax asset on Pension deficit relating to LGPS 227 565 227 230 

Deferred tax asset on Pension deficit relating to SHPS - 161 - - 

 227 726 227 230 

     

     

17 Legislative provision 

The Company is a Company limited by guarantee and a registered provider with the Homes and Communities Agency 

(formally the Tenant Services Authority) under the Housing Act 1996. 

 

18 Membership of the Company 
 

The Company is limited by guarantee and therefore has no share capital. The Board has a maximum of ten members; five 

nominated by Ocean Housing Limited and five Independent Board Members to be recruited via the Group’s recruitment 

procedures. 

 

19 Related party transactions 
 

Within the boards of the Group, there were three board members who served during the year that are also tenants. They 

all have a standard tenancy agreement and are required to fulfil the same obligations and receive the same benefit as 

other tenants. 
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20 Group companies and related transactions 
 

At 31 March 2016 Ocean Housing Group Limited was a parent undertaking with three subsidiaries and is a Registered 
Provider.  Subsidiaries within the Group are as follows:- 

Ocean Housing Limited  - Registered Provider 
Ocean Services (SW) Limited  - Provider of maintenance, technical and development services 
Gilbert & Goode Limited  - Building contractor 

During the year Ocean Housing Group Limited received the following management charges from other Group companies: 
 
 

Service level agreements 

Year ended  

31 March 2016 

£’000 

Year ended  

31 March 2015 

£’000 

Ocean Housing Limited 1,518 1,040 

Ocean Services (SW) Limited 239 566 

Gilbert & Goode Limited 499 340 

Total 2,256 1,946 

 

21 Capital commitments 

 
Group  

At 31 March 
2016   

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Capital expenditure that has been contracted for but 

not provided for in the financial statements 

10,457 15,440 - - 

 

22 Operating lease and contract hire commitments 

The Group and Company is committed to the following operating lease payments during the next year:  
 

Land and Buildings 
Group  

At 31 March  
2016 

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Arrangements expiring in less than 1 year  23 - - - 

Arrangements expiring between 1-5 years 76 - - - 

Arrangements expiring after more than 5 years 20 - - - 

Total 119 - - - 

 

Other 
Group  

At 31 March  
2016 

£’000 

Group  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2016 
£’000 

Company  
At 31 March 

2015 
£’000 

Arrangements expiring in less than 1 year  263 49 10 - 

Arrangements expiring between 1-5 years 777 50 - 38 

Arrangements expiring after more than 5 years - - - - 

Total 1,040 99 10 38 

Operating lease costs charged to the profit and loss account in the year were £176,000 (2015: £123,000). 
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23 Explanation of transition to FRS 102 from UK GAAP 

As stated in note 1, these are the Group’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS 102.  

The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2016 and the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2015.  

Reconciliation of surplus and reserves from old GAAP to FRS 102 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 1 April 2014 

 
 

    

   

Old UK 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition to FRS 

102 

FRS 102 

  
Note £’000 £’000 £’000 

Property, plant and equipment   
   

Housing properties  (a) & (b) 123,691 41,306 164,997 
Other tangible fixed assets   (a)  3,231 - 3,231 
Investments   114 - 114 

   127,036 41,306 168,342 
CURRENT ASSETS   

   
Stock   3,897 - 3,897 
Debtors   2,069 - 2,069 
Cash at bank and in hand   3,946  - 3,946 
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year   (c)  (3,983) (225) (4,208) 

Net current assets/( liabilities)   5,929 (225) 5,704 

      

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 

  
132,965 41,081 174,046 

Creditors : Amounts falling due after more than one 
year 

 
(d)  (111,285) (40,782) (152,067) 

Pension liabilities   (c)  (3,932) (1,579) (5,511) 

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)   17,748 (1,280) 16,468 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES   
   

Income & expenditure account   17,748 (1,280) 16,468 

         

TOTAL RESERVES   17,748 (1,280) 16,468 
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23 Explanation of transition to FRS 102 from UK GAAP (continued) 

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 1 April 2014 

 
 

    

   

Old UK 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition to FRS 

102 

FRS 102 

  
Note £’000 £’000 £’000 

Property, plant and equipment   
   

Other tangible fixed assets   116 - 116 

   116 - 116 
CURRENT ASSETS      

Debtors   146 - 146 
Cash at bank and in hand   180 - 180 
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year   (c)  (121) (53) (174) 

Net current assets/( liabilities)   205 (53) 152 

      

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 

  
321 (53) 268 

Creditors : Amounts falling due after more than one year 
 

(125) - (125) 

Pension liabilities   (c)  (871) (402) (1,273) 

NET LIABILITIES   (675) (455) (1,130) 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES      

Income & expenditure account   (675) (455) (1,130) 

      

TOTAL RESERVES   (675) (455) (1,130) 
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23 Explanation of transition to FRS 102 from UK GAAP (continued) 

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 

 

 
 

 
Old UK 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition to FRS 

102 

FRS 102 

 
 Note £’000 £’000 £’000 

      Property, plant and equipment   
   

Housing properties  (a) & (b) 131,335 41,013 172,348 
Other tangible fixed assets   (a)  3,233 - 3,233 
Investments   106 - 106 

   134,674 41,013 175,687 
CURRENT ASSETS   

   
Stock   7,875 - 7,875 
Debtors   5,166 - 5,166 
Cash at bank and in hand   3,199  - 3,199 
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year   (c)  (6,241) (308) (6,549) 
Provisions for liabilities and charges   (28) - (28) 

Net current assets/( liabilities)   9,971 (308) 9,663 

      

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 

  

144,645 40,705 185,350 

Creditors : Amounts falling due after more than one year  (d)  (122,346) (40,392) (162,738) 

Provisions for liabilities and charges   
 

  Pension liabilities   (c)  (4,211) (1,394) (5,605) 

NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)   18,088 (1,081) 17,007 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES   
   

Income & expenditure account   18,088 (1,081) 17,007 

         

TOTAL RESERVES   18,088 (1,081) 17,007 
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23 Explanation of transition to FRS 102 from UK GAAP (continued) 

Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015 

 
 

    

   

Old UK 
GAAP 

Effect of 
transition to FRS 

102 

FRS 102 

  
Note £’000 £’000 £’000 

Property, plant and equipment   
   

Other tangible fixed assets   248 - 248 

   248 - 248 
CURRENT ASSETS      

Debtors   148 - 148 
Cash at bank and in hand   87 - 87 

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year   (c)  (262) (53) (315) 

Provisions for liabilities and charges   (30) - (30) 

Net current assets/( liabilities)   (57) (53) (110) 

      

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT 
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 

  
191 (53) 138 

Creditors : Amounts falling due after more than one 
year 

 
 

(80) - (80) 

Pension liabilities   (c)  (921) (277) (1,198) 

NET LIABILITIES   (810) (330) (1,140) 

CAPITAL AND RESERVES      

Income & expenditure account   (810) (330) (1,140) 

      

TOTAL RESERVES   (810) (330) (1,140) 
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23 Explanation of transition to FRS 102 from UK GAAP (continued) 
 

Consolidated income and expenditure account to 31 March 2015 
 

 

 

Note 
Old UK GAAP Effect of 

Transition to 
FRS 102 

FRS 102 

 
 

 
£’000 £’000 £’000 

      Turnover: continuing activities 
 

g 30,183 390 30,573 

Operating costs 
 

e & f (21,963) (67) (22,030) 

Operating surplus 
  

8,220 323 8,543 

Surplus on sales of properties 
  

187 - 187 

Share in operating deficit of Joint Venture 
  

(8) - (8) 

Interest receivable & other income 
 

          12 - 12 

Interest payable & similar charges 
  

(7,114) - (7,114) 

Net interest payable on pension fund liabilities  e (45) (41) (86) 

Surplus for the financial year before taxation 
 

       1,252 282 1,534 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 
  

(179) (83) (262) 

Surplus for the financial year 
  

1,073 199 1,272 

 

Notes to the reconciliation of surplus and reserves 
 

(a) Under FRS102, where the accruals method has been adopted, capital grant should not be allocated to assets, but 

shown separately on the balance sheet as a long term creditor. This has the effect of increasing the value of fixed assets. 
 

(b) Previously the amortisation of government grant was included in the annual depreciation charge. Under FRS102, the 

accumulative depreciation has increased. 
 

(c)  FRS 102 requires the Company and Group to provide for contracted past benefits arising on funded mutli-employer 

pensions schemes, which was not a requirement under old UK GAAP.  A provision is made on the balance sheet for future 

liabilities under the Group’s membership of the Social Housing Pensions Scheme (defined benefit).  
 

(d) Under FRS102, where the accruals method has been adopted, capital grant should not be allocated to assets, but 

shown separately on the balance sheet as a long term creditor and amortised over the useful economic lives of the 

structure to which it relates.   
 

(e) Reduction in SHPS past service deficit liability net of Interest costs. 
 

(f) Shows the annual effects of note b. 
 

(g) Shows the annual effects of note d. 


